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MESSAGE
From the Chairman of the Board of Directors

“Unleashing the source of
hydropower - Lighting up
the future”

Dear Shareholders, Customers, Partners and All Staff of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company!

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to send you my warmest greetings and best wishes for health,
happiness and success.

The year 2024 has just ended, marking the initial recovery of Vietham’s hydropower industry after a difficult
year in 2023 due to the impact of climate change and the EI Nino phenomenon, leading to unfavorable
hydrological conditions, little rain, and prolonged heat. Entering 2024, the business picture of enterprises in
the industry gradually improved, supported by favorable hydrological conditions thanks to the appearance
of La Nina in the second half of 2024 as well as the recovery of consumption and production demand in the
domestic market despite continuing to face many challenges.

Despite being affected by many negative impacts from the world’s economic and political fluctuations, our
country’s socio-economic situation maintained a positive trend in 2024, with a stable macro-economy, inflation
controlled below the target, and social security ensured, which are important driving forces for industrial
production. According to data from the General Statistics Office , GDP in 2024 is estimated to increase by 7.09%,
exceeding the target set by the National Assembly. The average consumer price index (CPI) in 2024 increased
by 3.63% over the previous year, exceeding the target set by the National Assembly of 4% - 4.5%, and inflation
was well controlled. The industrial production sector in 2024 had a remarkable development with the industrial
production index for the whole year of 2024 increasing by 8.4%, the highest since 2020. Stable macroeconomic
conditions are the foundation for the development of the power industry in general and hydropower in particular.

For Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company, the past year has been a challenging but also full of
opportunities. The economic growth after the pandemic and the recovery of production have boosted the
demand for electricity. In addition, the forecast of rainfall in 2024 tends to recover compared to previous drought
years, helping to increase hydropower output. The transmission grid projects being invested in and upgraded
also help optimize the distribution of electricity from hydropower plants. In that context, with the close direction
of the Board of Directors, the determination of the Board of Management and the spirit of continuous efforts of
the employees, the Company has ensured the safe and economical operation of the units and achieved the
following results: the total consolidated revenue of the whole Company reached 552.5 billion VND, completing
101.8% of the plan, consolidated profit after tax reached 228.6 billion VND, completing 103.1% of the plan. In
addition, the Company’s electricity production output reached 565.97 million kWh, and the delivered power
energy production reached 557.80 million kWh. The factories are operated safely and effectively, contributing
to ensuring national electricity security as well as meeting the needs of the people. The environment, working
conditions, material and spiritual life of employees are increasingly improved. Social security activities are
organized regularly, demonstrating the Company’s sense of responsibility to society, which is always respected.
The above achievements are the result of the continuous efforts and dedication of all employees, reflecting the
trust and continued support of shareholders and partners.

With our highest respect,

After nearly 54 years of formation and development with many ups and downs, the Board of Directors of TBC
and all employees in the Company have always made constant efforts for a great mission: “Unleashing the
source of hydropower - Lighting up the future” to be able to bring clean electricity to every household, every
production and business establishment in Vietnam, so that from that source of electricity shines the light of
prosperity, of happiness, so that from that source of electricity, no one is left behind.

Entering 2025, the demand for electricity consumption is forecast to continue to grow steadily. TBC has been
nurturing investment plans to increase new production capacity, pursue the goal of sustainable growth in the
hydropower sector, maintain and build strategic relationships with partners and customers, improve welfare
and social security for employees and always fulfill responsibilities to shareholders and the community. All of
these can be realized with consistent cooperation between an honest and upright management apparatus, a
team of loyal and enthusiastic employees and especially TBC’s shareholders, who have always accompanied
and supported the Company. On behalf of the Company’s Board of Directors, | would like to express my most
sincere thanks to TBC’s shareholders, partners and employees, who have always trusted and attached to the
Company over the past time.

Best regards,
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Nguyen Quang Quyen
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SOME KEY INDICATORS

Growth
2024/2023

Net revenue 533 495 726 431 539 25%
Profit after tax 218 209 379 169 229 36%
Total assets 1599 1574 1595 1536 1,520 “1%
Equity 1233 1215 1374 1339 1,365 2%
ROE 17.7%  17.2%  27.6% 12.6%  16.8%

ROA 13.6% 13.3% 23.8% 11.0% 15.1%

billion VND
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VISION MISSION

In the era of globalization and deep Ensure safe production and highest
international integration, TBC will build economic efficiency; participate in regulating
the highest competitiveness to overcome reservoir water, preventing floods and
difficulties and challenges, creating droughts for downstream areas; expand
opportunities for rapid and sustainable investment, enhance service provision to
development, striving to become the increase benefits for shareholders, improve
leading prestigious unit in Vietham in material and spiritual life for workers; fulfill
the field of electricity production and obligations to the state and carry out social
technical service provision. security work.

CORE VALUES

Quality - credibility
In the era of knowledge economy. The electricity industry is not only the beginning, but must, along 2 .
with the progress of science and technology, create products of good quality. From that awareness, ® ®
TBC commits to: keeping the trust of customers, partners and society.

Dedication - intelligence

TBC people are dedicated to their work. Along with solid professional knowledge, proficient skills, and
promoting intellectual capacity to achieve the highest labor productivity. TBC wishes to build its image
with dedication and intelligence.

Cooperation - sharing \
AN

TBC always listens, is willing to cooperate, share and actively act for the benefit of customers, partners,
and employees. This is the value of TBC’s working style.

Creative - effective

Creativity is the lever for development, TBC always strives to maintain the most favorable working
environment to promote the creativity of employees; TBC is not satisfied with the achieved results, but
always actively research, studies, masters modern techniques and technologies, applies advanced
management methods along with the strength of solidarity to achieve the highest productivity, quality
and efficiency.
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General information Notable achievements
Trading name THAC BA HYDROELECTRIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY TBC workers are passionate about their work, constantly striving and being creative. Through 54 years

of operations, from the years of the resistance war against the US to the renovation period, Thac Ba

Business registration certificate No. 5200240495 was first issued by Hydropower Plant has always affirmed its position and role as one of the main power sources of the national

Sileacd Sliglieceiicats the Department of Planning and Investment of Yen Bai province on

number ) . power system, making an important contribution to the socio-economic development of the country. On that
March 31, 2006, the 8th adjustment was issued on June 1, 2023. journey, TBC has achieved great achievements such as:
Charter capital
o] o o Third Class Labor
Stock code 635,000,000,000 VND ‘ First Class Labor Medal xsiaelrsi:%;dgczagsgss ‘ Medal in 1976,
in 1983 ' “ 1996, 2003, 2011,

Head office address TBC @ @ 2016 @ 2021

Residential Group 1, Thac Ba Town, Yen Binh District, Yen Bai

Phone )

Province
S Rl Aoy Medal of Military Exploit in 1996, - Resistance Medal, 2nd Class

_ Title of Hero of the People’s ‘ in 1973; Independence Medal,
Website www.thacba.vn @ Armed Forces in 1999 ﬁ' 3rd Class in 2011
S8~

9 HPC THAC BA '

Logo &R hai nquin T/m'!/ dién - thip sang tumg lai




HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

1971

Factory establishment

The company was established under Decision No. 244 DT-
NCQLKT-1 of the Minister of Electricity and Coal. In October
1971, the factory officially started up Unit 1 and connected to
the national grid.

1993

Accounting dependent on Power Company I

Thac Ba Hydropower Plant was transformed into a dependent
accounting unit of Power Company I according to Decision No.
478 NL/TCCB-LD of the Minister of Energy.

1995

Thac Ba Hydropower Plant was transferred to Vietham Electricity
Corporation.

The Minister of Energy issued Decision No. 100/NL/TC-CB-LD
to transfer Thac Ba Hydropower Company to the Electricity
Corporation.

2005

Equitization

March 30, 2005: Thac Ba Hydropower Plant was converted into
Thac Ba Hydropower Company.

October 24, 2005: Thac Ba Hydropower Company was
transformed into Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

2019

Invest and expand production and business scale

In November 2019, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company completed the
transaction to buy back shares of Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company
(MHP) with a capacity of 34.8 MW, the ownership ratio was 50.94% of MHP’s charter
capital. MHP officially became a subsidiary of TBC.

2010

Establishment of branch - Technical service center

The company established a branch - Technical Service Center with the task of
repairing equipment and works of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant and implementing
technical service contracts with customers.

2009

Listing TBC shares on HOSE

On October 19, 2009, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company’s shares were
officially listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE) with the stock code
TBC.

2006

March 31, 2006: Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company officially came into
operation under Business Registration Certificate No. 5200240495 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Yen Bai province.

August 29, 2006: Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company’s shares were officially
traded on the Hanoi Stock Exchange with stock code TBC.
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BUSINESS LINE AND OPERATING

LOCATION

Main business line

Electricity generation

Other business lines

Other perennial crop cultivation
Logging
Quarrying of stone, sand, gravel, and clay

Details: Dredging of lakes and riverbeds
Metalworking; metal treatment and coating
Repair of machinery and equipment
Installation of industrial machinery and equipment
Electricity generation

Details: Power generation
Transmission and distribution of electricity

Details: Electricity trading; Testing and calibration of
electrical equipment
Water extraction, treatment, and supply
Pollution treatment and other waste management
activities
Residential building construction
Non-residential building construction
Construction of electrical infrastructure

Details:
* Investment in power generation and grid
infrastructure;
* Management, operation, repair, maintenance,
overhaul, and renovation of hydraulic structures,
architectural works, and equipment of hydropower
plants and transformer stations.
Construction of water supply and drainage systems
Construction of other public utility works
Installation of electrical systems

Details: Installation of electrical systems for
buildings and civil engineering structures
Installation of water supply, drainage, heating, and air

conditioning systems
Installation of other construction systems
Other specialized construction activities
Wholesale of other machinery, equipment, and spare
parts

Details: Wholesale o

eqﬂ'pment

achinery, materials, and

Other road passenger transport
Road freight transport
Short-term accommodation services
Other accommodation facilities
Details: Accommodation for trainees, interns,
temporary or long-term workers
Contract-based catering services for non-regular
customers
Real estate business, land use rights owned, used, or
leased
Details:
* Rental, operation, and management of residential
buildings and land;
* Rental, operation, and management of non-residential
buildings and land.
Architectural and related technical consultancy activities
Details:
» Consultancy for investment project preparation,

construction investment management, and supervision of

electrical construction projects;
» Surveying, measurement, and mapping services;
Spatial data mapping and information, land boundary
and coordinate determination.
Technical testing and analysis

Details:
* Testing, calibration, and safety inspection of electrical
equipment and tools;
* Technical safety inspection for machinery, equipment,
and materials with strict labor safety requirements.
Other professional, scientific, and technical activities not
elsewhere classified

Details: Meteorological and hydrological activities,
water and humidity measurement
Motor vehicle rental
Rental of other machinery, equipment, and tangible
goods without operators
Travel agency services
Landscape care and maintenance services
General office administrative services
Other education not classified

Details: Vocational training, knowledge enhancement,
management, operation, maintenance, and repair of
power plant equipment
Activities of sports facilities

Details: Rental of stadiums, football fields, volleyk
courts, tennis gourts; organization_ofgports activitie

Operating location

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company
is the unit directly managing and operating
Thac Ba Hydropower Plant in Yen Binh
district, Yen Bai province.
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Governance model, business organization
and management structure

General Meeting of
Shareholders

Board OF Directors

General Director

Deputy Director -
Investment &

onsinacton

Board of
Supervisors

Deputy Diractor -
Irvesiment

Deputy Director -

Technical

lI I I 1 1 ':.
| I
| | | |
oo e Financa & Flanning & Tachnical Pl Markoel
B Accourtig Materials Sergices Technical ateiba ey
Resaumtes i o o c workshap Engnears
Cepaniment
Thac Ba 2 Hydroposwer Muorg Hum
Investment Joint Stoch Hydropawer Jaint Stock
Company Company

General Meeting of Shareholders

Is the highest authority of the Company,
including all shareholders with voting rights.
The General Meeting of Shareholders meets
at least once a year to decide on matters
stipulated by the Law and the Company’s
Charter.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is elected by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, on behalf of
shareholders, to direct all production, business,
management and operation activities of the
Company. The Board of Directors consists
of 05 members with a term of 05 years. The
Board of Directors is the body with full authority
to exercise all rights on behalf of the Company,
except for the authority belonging to the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors is elected by the
General Meeting of Shareholders and, on
behalf of shareholders, controls all business,
management and operation activities of the
Company. The Board of Supervisors consists
of 03 members.

General Director

Appointedbythe Board of Directors, responsible
for managing the production, business and
investment activities of the Company as
approved by the Board of Directors and the
General Meeting of Shareholders, subject to
the direction and supervision of the Board of
Directors and responsible before the Board of
Directors and the Law for the implementation
of assigned rights and duties.

Deputy General Director

Appointed by the Board of Directors, assists
the General Director and is responsible to the
Board of Directors and the General Director
for assigned tasks and powers. The Company
currently has 03 Deputy General Directors.

Human Resources Administration

Advises the Company’s leaders on organizing the
production and business management structure,
organizing staff, and training and developing
human resources; labor and salary work, social
insurance, health insurance, labor protection;
security - inspection - legal work.

Technical - Electricity Market

Advises the Company’s leaders on technical
management, operation methods and electricity
market, production management; natural disaster
prevention.

Planning and Materials

Advises the Company’s leaders on planning,
statistics, synthesis, construction investment
estimates and major repairs of the Company’s
works and equipment. Directly manages and
supplies materials and equipment for production
and business.

Finance and Accounting

Advises the Company’s leadership on financial
management, capital resources and accounting
according to the Law.

Operation Workshop

Is the unit with the function of directly managing and
operating the electricity production line according
to the process, regulations, plans and mobilization
methods of the dispatching level. Manage
equipment and assets according to assigned
regulations.

Technical Service Center

Is a dependent accounting branch of Thac Ba
Hydropower Joint Stock Company, is a direct
production unit, has the function of performing
repair activities, managing works and equipment
serving the production and business activities of
Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company and
providing technical services including: Training,
operation, repair, testing, calibration, installation...
for hydropower plants.

Safety engineer

Advise company leaders on technical safety
management, labor protection, fire prevention and
environmental protection.
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Information of subsidiaries and affiliates

Subsidiary Affiliated companies

Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company Company name Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment Joint Stock Company

Head office address Ban Xeo 1 Village, Ban Xeo Commune, Bat Xat District, Lao Cai Head office address Residential Group 1, Thac Ba Town, Yen Binh District, Yen Bai
Province , Vietham Province

5300526931 Tax code 5200899087

Electricity production and trading Main business line Elegtricity production and trading (Investment in Thac Ba 2 Hydropower
ool L rarir cania AT T

258,892,700,000 Capital TBC contributed 103,861,380,000

50.94% TBC Voting ratio 49%

Factory information Muong Hum Hydropower Plant - Capacity: 32MW. Factory information Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Plant - Design capacity: 18.9MW
Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant - Capacity: 2.8MW
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Introduction of the Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Van Trung - Member of Board of Directors

ismi ber 20, 2024
Mr. Nguyen Quang Quyen - Chairman of the Board of Directors (Dismissed from September 20, )

Year of birth: 1972 Year of birth: 1977

Professional qualification: Master of Business Administration Professional qualifications: Master of Business Administration;
Number of shares owned/represented: 0 Electrical and Electronic Engineer

Ownership ratio: 0% Number of shares owned/represented: 7,620,000 (representing
Positions at other organizations: GENCO3’s capital at TBC)

- Deputy General Director at Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Joint Stock Ownership ratio: 12%

Company; _ _ . Dismissal: September 20, 2024

- Member of Board of Directors of Pha Lai Thermal Power Joint Stock Company; Positions at other organizations:

- Member of Board of Directors of Vinh Son - Song Hinh Hydropower Joint Stock - Deputy Head of Construction Investment Department of Power
Company; _ _ Generation Corporation 3 Joint Stock Company.

- Member of Board of Directors of Thac Mo Hydropower Joint Stock Company; - Chairman of Board of Directors of Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment
- Member of Board of Directors of Central Hydropower Joint Stock Company. Joint Stock Company

Mr. Le Tuan Hai - Member of Board of Directors Mr. Nguyen Van Da - Member of Board of Directors
Year of birth: 1982

Professional qualification: Mechanical Engineer

Number of shares owned/represented: 0

Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations:

- Technical Department Specialist, REE Energy Company Limited

Year of birth: 1970

Qualification: Electrical Systems Engineer

Number of shares owned/represented: 0

Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations:

- Technical Director at Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Joint Stock
Company;

- Member of the Board of Directors of Pha Lai Thermal Power Joint
Stock Company;

- Member of the Board of Directors of Vinh Son - Song Hinh
Hydropower Joint Stock Company;

- Member of the Board of Directors of Southern Hydropower Joint
Stock Company;

- Member of the Board of Directors of Thac Mo Hydropower Joint Stock
Company.

Mr. Tran Ky Hai - Member of Board of Directors
(Appointed from 20/09/2024)

Year of birth: 1980

Qualification: Electrical Engineer; Master in Equipment, Network and
Power Plant

Appointment: 20/09/2024

Number of shares owned/represented: 7,620,000 (representing EVN
GENCO3'’s capital at TBC)

Ownership ratio: 12 %

Year of birth: 1966 Positions at other organizations: Nil

Professional qualification: Electrical system engineer - Bachelor of Business

Administration

Number of shares owned/represented: 11,430,000 (representing GENCO3’s capital

at TBC)

Ownership ratio: 18%

Positions at other organizations: Nil.

Mr. Nguyen Van Quyen - Member of Board of Directors and
General Director
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Ms. Nguyen Thi Huynh Phuong - Head of Board of

Supervisors

Year of birth: 1973

Qualification: Bachelor of Economics

Number of shares owned/represented: 0

Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations:

- Specialist of Internal Control and Risk Management Department
- Refrigeration Electrical Engineering JSC

- Head of Control Department of Thuan Binh Wind Power JSC;

- Member of the Board of Supervisors of Song Ba Ha Hydropower
Joint Stock Company.

Ms. Tran Nguyen Khanh Linh - Member of Board of
Supervisors

Year of birth: 1991

Professional qualification: Bachelor of Banking and Finance
Number of shares owned/represented: 0

Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations:

- Finance and Accounting Department of Power Generation
Corporation 3 Joint Stock Company.

Ms. Lai Le Huong - Member of Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1977

Qualifications Bachelor of Economics - Major in Accounting
Number of shares owned/represented: 0

Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations:

- Specialist of Investment Department, Refrigeration Electrical
Engineering Joint Stock Company;

- Member of Supervisory Board, Thac Mo Hydropower Joint
Stock Company;

- Member of Supervisory Board, Binh Dien Hydropower Joint
Stock Company.

Mr. Nguyen Van Quyen - General Director and
Member of Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1966

Professional qualifications: Electrical Systems Engineer;
Bachelor of Business Administration

Number of shares owned/represented: 11,430,000 (representing
GENCO@'’s capital at TBC)

Mr. Nguyen Manh Cuong - Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1979

Professional qualifications: Measurement engineer and Industrial
Informatics

Number of shares owned/represented: 0

Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations: Nil.

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hai - Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1967

Qualification: Electrical Systems Engineer

Number of shares owned/represented: 1800

Ownership ratio: 0.003%

Positions at other organizations:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Vinh Son - Song Hinh
Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Thai An Hydropower Joint
Stock Company.

- General Director of Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock
Company.

Mr. Bui Hoang - Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1979

Professional qualifications: Electrical Engineer, Master of
Business Administration

Number of shares owned/represented: 3000

Ownership ratio: 0.005%

Positions at other organizations:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Muong Hum Hydropower
Joint Stock Company

Mr. Le Hong Minh - Chief Accountant

Year of birth: 1985

Qualification: Bachelor of Business Accounting
Number of shares owned/represented: 0
Ownership ratio: 0%

Positions at other organizations: Nil.



Position

The first hydroelectric plant in the North

Thac Ba Hydropower Plant is proud to be the first child of the Vietnamese hydropower industry, the first hydropower plant
built in the North of our country during the transition period to socialism. The plant was started in 1964 and was a key
project in the country’s first 5-year socio-economic development plan (1960 - 1965). The plant was officially completed
and put into operation the first unit in October 1971. Through more than a decade of 54 namoperation, from the years of
resistance against the US to save the country to the renovation period, Thac Ba Hydropower Plant has always affirmed
its position and role as one of the main power sources of the national power system, making an important contribution
to the socio-economic development of the country.

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company is the unit directly managing and operating Thac Ba Hydropower Plant to
exploit the hydropower of Thac Ba Lake. The geographical location and terrain of Thac Ba Lake are favorable conditions
for the Company’s production and business activities. Some main technical parameters of the reservoir and plant:

- Location: on Chay River;

- Usable capacity of the reservoir: 2,160,000,000 m3;

- Total capacity of the reservoir: 2,940,000,000 m3;

- Lake surface area at normal water level: 235 km2;

- Length: 80 km;

- Installed capacity: 120 MW;

- Maximum height of dam: 48 m;

- Maximum dam crest length: 657 m;

Effective Joint Stock Company - Prestigious Electrical Engineering Service Provider

In addition to the management and repair activities of works and equipment serving the production and business
activities at Thac Ba Hydropower Plant, the company also promotes the search and provision of technical services for
hydropower plants in the Northern region including: Training, operation, repair, testing, calibration, installation... The
company has affirmed its reputation, position and trust of customers. The annual revenue from technical services is over
tens of billions of VND.

Business results of companies in the same industry

313.762

538.668

billion VND

814.199

76.193

47.185

198.338 Source: Financial Statement Q4/2024

U HJS, ISH, SBA, TBC, CHP

HJS ISH SBA TBC CHP

m Netrevenue W Profit affer tax



Development orientation

Enhance the Efficiency of Production and Business Activities

- Continue to invest in upgrading and overhauling generators to optimize
power generation efficiency.

- Apply modern technology in operation and maintenance to improve the
safety and stability of the system.

- Improve management capacity and optimize production costs to ensure
sustainable profits.

Expand Investment in Energy Development

- Implement the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Project and research additional
potential small hydropower projects.

- Promote research and investment in renewable energy sources such as
wind power and solar power to diversify the product portfolio.

- Cooperate with domestic units to develop power projects in line with
market trends.

Promote Sustainable Development

- Ensure development associated with environmental protection, comply
with regulations on water resource management and regional ecology.

- Implement solutions to minimize the impact of climate change on electricity
production.

- Actively contribute to local communities through social security programs
and infrastructure development.

Strengthen Corporate Governance Capacity

- Apply advanced governance standards, improving human resource
quality, and working environment.

- Improve management systems, promoting digitalization, and applying
technology in management and monitoring operations.

- Build long-term development strategies, ensuring stable and sustainable
growth.

With these orientations, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company
aims to maintain its position as one of the leading hydropower
enterprises in Vietnam, while expanding its development in a
sustainable and modern direction.
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Risks

During nearly 54 years of establishment and development, to have increasingly breakthrough
steps, besides the work of optimizing production and business, risk management has always
been the key to TBC’s increasingly sustainable journey. As an enterprise operating in the form of
a joint stock company in the field of electricity production and business, the Company’s business
activities are bound by risk factors such as: Economic risks, weather risks, risks of electricity
price fluctuations, other risk factors, ...

Principles o

/

Risk management is a continuous
process, an indispensable part of all
Company processes. In particular, risk
management must be closely linked to
the Company’s goals and strategies
and is an important part of issuing any
decision related to the Company’s
operations.

\

\

The risk management system
includes departments and personnel
serving risk management, integrated
into the Company’s management
and operation structure, operating
in parallel, in accordance with the
Company’s scale and scope of
operations.

Risk management must be based on
available, reliable information. Inputs
to the risk management process
must be based on reliable information
sources of quantity and quality, from a
variety of sources, including archived

data, experience, stakeholder
feedback, observations, forecasts and
judgments.

4 )

Risk management policies and
procedures are implemented
continuously, regularly  updated,
adjusted and supplemented to suit the
scope, scale of operations, conditions
of the Company and market context.

Risk Mana

Establish risk context

Risk assessment

Risk treatment

Risk treatment selection

Risk treatment
Implementation

Risk treatment

Acceptance

Define solutions and planning
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Economic risk

The company may face impacts from economic
recession or slowing economic growth. When
the economy declines, electricity consumption
demand may decrease, affecting electricity
consumption output. For example, in 2023, the
difficult economic situation affected electricity
demand in a few large industrial zones, reducing
electricity sales of many hydropower enterprises.

Entering 2024, economic growth was restored,
maintaining positive momentum in all three areas
(agricultural production; industrial production;
trade, services), leading to increased demand for
electricity. Specifically, Vietham ‘s GDP in 2024
is estimated to increase by 7.09% compared to
the previous year, only lower than the growth
rates of 2018, 2019 and 2022 in the 2011-2024
period, exceeding the target set by the National
Assembly. In the total added value growth of the
entire economy, the agriculture, forestry, and
fishery sector increased by 3.27%, contributing
5.37%; the industry and construction sector
increased by 8.24%, contributing 45.17%; the
service sector increased by 7.38%, contributing
49.46%.

Although the world context continues to be
complicated and unpredictable with many risky
and uncertain factors, the world economic picture
is gradually stabilizing as global trade in goods
improves again, inflationary pressure gradually
decreases, financial market conditions continue
to be loosened, the labor market recovers
positively, thereby having positive impacts on the
Viethamese economy.

Weather and climate risk

For hydropower plants in general and Thac
Ba Hydropower Plant in particular, electricity
production depends mainly on the amount of
water flowing into the reservoirs. In case the water
in the reservoirs is lacking, or even dried up due
to erratic weather changes such as prolonged
drought, reduced rainfall during the rainy season,
the amount of water stored in the reservoirs is
lower than the design level, causing the plant’s
electricity production to not reach the set target.

In 2024, the development of natural disasters,
storms and floods also greatly affected the work
of ensuring cung power supply, especially the
impact of storm No. 3 (YAGI) and post-storm
flooding in 26 provinces/cities in the Northern
region. However, with the strong and regular
direction of the Government, the Prime Minister,
ministries, branches, localities, together with
the solidarity, efforts, and determination of
the collective leadership and all employees,
the implementation of the Company’s tasks in
2024 has achieved many remarkable results.
For weather risks such as flash floods, heavy
rains causing real harm give the labour In order
to prevent damage to the plant's dam , as well
as causing problems in the power supply, the
Company is always ready to prepare plans to
prevent floods and storms, reduce damage
caused by natural disasters and implement
measures to protect the ecological environment.

The company has conducted a general inspection
of the project before the storm season, including
inspection of hydraulic mechanical equipment;
inspection of  communication  systems;
inspection and testing of grounding and lightning
protection systems... The inspection results
are summarized in a report sent to the Ministry
of Industry and Trade, the National Steering
Committee for Disaster Prevention and Control,
Yen Bai Provincial People’s Committee, Yen
Bai Provincial Steering Committee for Disaster
Prevention and Control, Vietnam Electricity
Group, Power Generation Corporation 3;
Establish and approve the Disaster Response
Plan for Thac Ba Hydropower Plant; Establish a
Report on the current safety status of dams and
reservoirs and send it to Department of Industry
and Trade of Yen Bai province according to
regulations; Prepare a report on dam and
reservoir safety assessment and send it to the
Department of Industrial Safety and Environment
Techniques according to regulations; Review
the Emergency Response Plan for Thac Ba
Hydropower Dam and Reservoir approved by
Yen Bai Provincial People’s Committee .

Entering 2025, the Company will continue to
face many risks related to weather and climate,
significantly affecting production and operation
activities. According to the forecast of the National
Center for Hydro-Meteorological Forecasting, in

2025, the ENSO phenomenon in La Nina
conditions may exist for a short time, then it is
highly likely to gradually return to a neutral state
. The climate in 2025 predicts that the heat wave
phenomenon is likely to appear equivalent to the
average of many years . The Company always
tries to closely follow climate and hydrological
forecasts to have timely plans to operate
reservoirs effectively, thereby building optimal
power generation plans.

Risk of electricity price fluctuations

The company’s electricity price depends on the
state’s regulatory policy and developments in the
competitive electricity market. In 2024, the retail
electricity price in Vietham was adjusted up once
on October 11, with an increase of 4.8%, raising
the average electricity price from VND 2,006.79/
kWh to VND 2,103.1159/kWh. In total, after this
adjustment, the current electricity price increased
by 9.51% compared to 2019. It is forecasted that
in 2025, Vietnam Electricity Group (EVN) may
continue to increase the average retail electricity
price from 4% to 8%. The main reasons include:
the current average retail electricity price is
still lower than the cost of electricity production
in 2023 (VND 2,088.90/kWh); pressure on
increasing operating costs due to exchange rates
when the US Federal Reserve (FED) maintains a
tight monetary policy; and electricity demand is
expected to increase by 12.5% in 2025.

Other risks

For many years, Thac Ba Lake, which is directly
managed by TBC, has been seriously encroached
upon by several businesses when implementing
construction projects and factories, arbitrarily
dumping soil and leveling directly into the lake,
narrowing the water surface area, affecting the
capacity of Thac Ba Lake and seriously violating
the safety of the reservoir - Thac Ba hydroelectric
lake.

To effectively exploit the long-term benefits
of Thac Ba Lake, and at the same time take
measures to protect the safety of the Thac
Ba Hydropower Reservoir, TBC has been
coordinating with relevant authorities to take
more drastic measures to rectify and completely
handle the illegal leveling and dumping of soll
into the lakebed.
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Operating performance

2024 cons Business r
Actual Actual . .
. .. Actual  Actual 2024/ 2024/ . .. SIRIEEDIEII st
Detailed description 2024 2023 Plan Actual Detailed description
2024 2023 TBC MHP Consolidated
I POWER GENERATION I POWER ENERGY PRODUCTION
1 Power energy production Million kWh 512.00 565.97 443 .51 110.50% 127.60% 1 Power energy production Million KWh 413.61 152.36 565.97
Commercial power -
2 energy for sale Million kWh  503.32 557.80  436.56 110.80%  127.80% 2 Commercial power energy for sale  Million kWh 409.61 148.19 557.80
Il TOTAL REVENUE l\g'g':gn 542,499 552,489 443,523 101.80% 124.60% [ TOTAL REVENUE '\Igicl)”r:)gn 425,416 193,824 552,489
Million Million
1] TOTAL COST o 284,148 282,515 246,549 99.40% 114.60% I TOTAL COST Do 205,096 84,730 282,515
— Milli
IV PROFIT BEFORE TAX '\I’D"(')"rf’g" 258,351 269,973 196,974 104.50% 137.10% IV PROFIT BEFORE TAX D'O':g" 220,321 109,094 269,974
illi Million
\Y Corporate Income Tax '\gl(l)l:;)gn 36,675 41,353 28,360 112.80% 145.80% \% Corporate Income Tax Dong 35,297 5,966 41,353
- Million
VI PROFIT AFTER TAX '\I’D"(')"r‘l’g“ 221676 228,621 168,614 103.10% 135.60% g FRI AL A USRS Dong e I 205 5
Profit from the parent Million Profit from the parent company 178,028

166,067 178,028 125,706 | 107.2% 141.6%
company Dong

LT T




Total revenue

In 2024, the Company’s total consolidated revenue reached more
than VND 552.489 billion, an increase of 24.6% compared to 2023.
The Company’s revenue mainly comes from electricity generation
revenue of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant and Muong Hum Ban Xeo
Hydropower Plant Cluster. In which:

- The power energy production of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant in
2024 reached 413.61 million kWh, 107.28 million kWh higher than
the same period, equivalentto 135%. The commercial power energy
production reached 409.61 million kWh, 106.47 million kWh higher
than the same period, equivalent to 135%. The average electricity
price reached 779 VND/kWh, equivalent to 96% compared to
the same period. Total revenue reached 425.4 billion VND, 99.2
billion VND higher than the same period, equivalent to 130% and
114% compared to the plan approved by the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders.

- The power energy production of Muong Hum - Ban Xeo
Hydropower Complex in 2024 reached 152.36 million kWh, 15.18
million kWh higher than the same period, equivalent to 111% over
the same period and reaching 98% of the plan. Commercial output
reached 148.19 million kWh, 14.77 million kWh higher than the
same period, equivalent to 111% and reaching 98% of the plan.
Total revenue reached 193.8 billion VND, 13.5 billion VND higher
than the same period, equal to 108% over the same period and
reaching 96% of the plan.

Profit after tax

The Company’s consolidated profit after tax in 2024 reached VND
228.6 billion, reaching 103% of the set plan and increasing by
35.6% compared to 2023. Of which:

- TBC'’s total after-tax profit in 2024 reached VND 185 billion, an
increase of VND 39.3 billion over the same period, an increase of
27% compared to the 2023 results and reaching 121% compared
to the 2024 plan.

- MHP’s total profit after tax reached VND 103.1 billion, an increase
of VND 15.6 billion, equivalent to 118% compared to the 2023
result and completing 91% of the 2024 plan.




Organization and personnel

Labor structure

By Resolution of the 2024 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1938/NQ-TDTB-
DHDCD dated September 20, 2024, the Company dismissed 01 member of the Board of Directors,

Mr. Ho Van Trung, and elected Mr. Tran Ky Hai as a non-executive member of the Board of No. Detailed description 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
Directors for the remaining term of 2021-2026. 1 Total number of employees 124 125
2 By gender
2.1 Male 101 103
2.2 Female 23 22
Organizational structure 3 By level
Undergraduate and postgraduate
The company has: 01 General Director, 03 Deputy General Directors, 04 functional departments, 3.1 degrees 69 72
01 Operation workshop and 01 Branch. 3.2 College and vocational school 22 24
3.3 Primary and technical workers 30 27
Number of employees over the years 34 General Iabor 3 >
As of December 31, 2024 , the Company has 125 employees. 4 Classification by labor contract
4.1 Indefinite term contract 122 118
4.2 12 month contract 2 7
5 By age
5.1 18 to 25 years old 0 4
5.2 26 to 35 years old 25 23
5.3 36 to 45 years old 47 44
54 Over 45 52 54
6 By management level
6.1 Senior Management 4 4
6.2 Middle management 8 8
6.3 Branch level management 7 7
6.4 Specialist, staff 105 106

e

i

Average income of workers

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Salary fund (million VND) 32,855 32,152 38,886 33,486 37,116
Average income (million VND/ 297 229 27 1 235 248

person/month)
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Summary of policy for e

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company always focuses on building and implementing policies
to ensure the rights and welfare of employees. Below are some typical policies:

Employee welfare and care policy

The company has a salary, bonus, and welfare
policy to encourage employees, especially
experienced employees, professional
employees, and workers who work long-term
atthe company, including a policy of supporting
housing for the first 5 years for newly recruited
employees. The company strictly complies
with the provisions of the law on labor, salary,
remuneration and bonuses, ensuring the
legal rights of employees. Social insurance,
health insurance and other benefits are fully
implemented according to the regulations of
the State.

In addition, in 2024, the Company organized
many activities to show its concern for the
lives of its employees such as:

Reward and recognition policy

The company encourages employee creativity
and effort through competition and reward
programs. During the period 2022-2024,
Thac Ba Hydropower participated in the
11th Yen Bai Province Technical Innovation
Competition, creating opportunities  for
employees to demonstrate their initiatives and
technical innovations at work.

- On August 23, 2024, in response to the
program of organizing “Union Meals” deployed
by the Vietnam General Confederation of
Labor, the Company’s Trade Union Executive
Committee and the Women’s Union directly
prepared lunch and delivered it to the Thac Ba
2 Hydropower Plant construction site and the
shift and production positions of the Operation
Workshop of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock
Company.

- The company organizes tours and vacations
to improve the spiritual life and create
conditions for bonding between employees.
For example, in October 2024, the company
organized a tour and vacation foremployees in
Thailand, showing its concern for the spiritual
life of employees.
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Training and development policy

The company focuses on improving the professional qualifications and skills
of employees through training programs. Specifically:

- On March 21, 2024, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company, Operation
Workshop coordinated with Technical Department - Electricity Market, Safety
Engineer to organize a periodic incident handling drill for the first quarter of
2024 under the chairmanship of comrade Nguyen Manh Cuong - Deputy
General Director.

- The Company’s Board of Directors and male colleagues always pay special
attention to female employees in the Company, creating the best conditions
for them to strive to study, improve their professional qualifications, skills,
political theory, and contribute more of their talents and intelligence to
the development of the Company. In 2024, the Executive Committee
of the Company’s Trade Union - Women’s Union organized a meeting to
exchange and learn about women’s work at Ninh Binh Thermal Power Joint
Stock Company on the occasion of the 114th anniversary of International
Women’s Day March 8 (March 8, 1910 - March 8, 2024) and the 1984th
anniversary of the Hai Ba Trung Uprising. The program creates a joyful and
exciting atmosphere to promote the celebration of International Women’s
Day on March 8, thereby strengthening the solidarity between the two units,
enriching cultural and spiritual activities, promoting the sports movement,
improving the health of women to carry out and complete all assigned tasks
and competition targets.

- Besides, the Company also encourages and inspires and promote the will
and talent of the Company’s staff . Protect the legitimate and legal rights
and interests, create conditions for employees to improve their professional
qualifications, knowledge and skills. In the exciting atmosphere of the
whole country, actively competing in labor production to celebrate the 79th
anniversary of the successful August Revolution and National Day on
September 2 in general as well as the 60th anniversary of the groundbreaking
of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant (August 19, 1964 - August 19, 2024) in
particular. On the afternoon of August 19, 2024, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company solemnly organized the “National Day for National Security
Protection”. This is not only an opportunity to widely propagate from the
central to local levels, demonstrating the special attention of the Party and
State to the national movement for national security protection in the current
period, but also an opportunity for the Company’s employees to Review the
history of the formation of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant - the first hydropower
project, which means “The cradle of Vietham’s hydropower industry” and
remember, understand and engrave: The stature of the project, with its
historical significance, has affirmed the determination of the Party and State,
and the joint efforts of all the people.

- On April 23, 2024, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company coordinated
with PCO7 Fire Prevention and Rescue Police Department of Yen Bai
Provincial Police to open a class on “Propaganda and training on fire
prevention and rescue in 2024, deploying the Company’s fire fighting plan
drill” with the participation of the Company’s Fire Fighting Team, along with
all employees working in positions with high risk of fire and explosion in
the Company. This is an annual activity of the Company. The purpose is
to propagate and train employees in the Company to understand the role,
responsibility and importance of fire prevention and rescue work.

- In addition, the Company has also developed a training plan for 2025.
Accordingly, the Company’s Technical Service Center will conduct theoretical
training for the operational management staff of Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Plant
in January 2025, to ensure that the staff has the necessary knowledge and
skills for the job.
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Investment and project implementation

Financial investme

» Asof December 31, 2024 , the Company holds 49% of voting rights at the Company at Thac Ba
Hydropower Investment Joint Stock Company 2 with a total contributed capital value of VND
103,861,380,000 .

* As of December 31, 2024 , the Company holds 5% of the voting rights, equivalent to 200,000
shares, at Thai An Hydropower Joint Stock Company. The Company cannot determine the
fair value of this investment because the company’s shares are not listed on the stock market.

* As of December 31, 2024 , the Company holds 0.22% of voting rights, equivalent to 1,100,000
shares, at Hai Phong Thermal Power Joint Stock Company. The Company’s shares are traded
on the UpCOM market with the closing price on the last trading day in December 2024 being
VND 12,900 /share (last trading day in December 2023: VND 14,000/ share).

Activities at Subsic

Operational situation at subsidiary - Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Activities at Subsic

Operating performance at the associated company - Thac Ba 2 Hydropower
Investment Joint Stock Company

No. Targets Unit 2024 2023 % Change
1 Total assets Million Dong 733,720 764,661 (4.05%)
2 Net revenue Million Dong 193,424 177,393 9.04%

3 Cost of goods sold Million Dong 61,430 58,278 5.41%
4  Financial revenue Million Dong 401 2,851 (85.92%)

Selling, administrative and financial

5 costs Million Dong 23,296 30,010 (22.37%)
6 Profit from business activities Million Dong 109,098 91,956 18.64%
7  Other profits Million Dong (4) (27) 83.99%
8 Profit before tax Million Dong 109,094 91,929 18.67%

9 Profit after tax Million Dong 103,128 87,462 17.91%

No. Target Unit 2024
1 Total assets as of December 31, 2024 Million Dong 663,627
2 Charter capital as of December 31, 2024 Million Dong 211,962
3 \ézl(l;ee ;;;E;(i';ig;istment contributed as of Million Dong 103,861
4  TBC's provision for investment in vao LK Company Million Dong (3,981)
5  Profit after tax Million Dong (3,295)




Financial situation

Unit: Million VND

Target Unit 2023 2024 Difference
Financial indicators
1 Total assets Million Dong 1,535,913 1,519,817 -1.05%
2 Current assets Million Dong 373,682 235,477 -36.98% Liquidity ratios
3 Long-term assets Million Dong 1,162,231 1,284,340 10.51%
Short-term solvency Times 2.46 1.66
4 Liabilities Million Dong 196,804 154,979 -21.25%
5  Equity Million Dong 1,339,109 1,364,838  1.92% Fast payment ability Times 243 1.62
6 Net revenue Million Dong 430,944 538,668 25.00% Leverage ratios
7  Profit from operating activities  Million Dong 196,886 269,184 36.72%
Debt/Total Assets % 12.81 10.20
8  Other profits Million Dong 87 790 808.05%
9 Profit before tax Million Dong 196,974 269,974  37.06% Debt/Equity % 14.70 11.36
Profit after tax Million Dong 168,614 228,621 35.59% Efficiency ratios
Dividend Rate % 20% 20%
Average inventory turnover Times 36.19 38.75
Total asset turnover Times 0.28 0.35

Profitability ratios

Profit after tax ratio/ Net revenue % 39.13% 42.44%
- Return on Equity (ROE) % 12.43% 16.75%
- Profit after tax/Total assets (ROA) % 10.98% 15.04%

- Operating profit ratio/Net revenue % 45.69% 49.97%
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Shareholders and shareholder structure

Shares of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock

Stock name
Company
Stock type Common stock
Stock code TBC
Share price 10,000 VND/share

Listing/Trading Start Date

On August 29, 2006, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company’s shares were officially traded on
the Hanoi Stock Exchange with the stock code TBC.

On October 19, 2009, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company’s shares were officially traded on
the Hanoi Stock Exchange with the stock code TBC.
Thac Ba Hydropower Plant officially listed at the
Stock Exchange Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
(HOSE) with stock code TBC .

Total number of shares outstanding

63,500,000 shares

Total treasury shares

0 shares

Number of freely transferable shares

63,500,000 shares

Number of Restricted Transfer Shares

0 shares

Capital increases in 2024: Nil
Treasury stock transactions in 2024: Nil

Other securities: Nil

Number of
shares

Ownership ratio ( %)

1 State shareholder 0 0

Founding shareholder/ FDI

2 shareholder L L
3 Major shareholder 57,415,168 90.42
- Domestic 57,415,168 90.42

- Foreign 0 0

4 Company Union 0 0

5 Treasury stock 0 0
6 Other shareholders 6,084,832 9.58
- Domestic 5,154,528 8.12
- Foreign 930,304 1.47
TOTAL 63,500,000 100
In there: - Domestic 62,569,696 98.53
- Foreign 930,304 1.47

ID card/

Name of organization/ Business Date of s
e s . . . Address of shares
individual registration issue
owned
number
364 Cong
REE ENERGY Hoa, Ward
COMPANY LIMITED 0316514160 30/09/2020 13, Tan Binh 38,365,168 60.42
District, HCMC
No: 60-66
Nguyen Co
Thach Street,
Power Generation Sala Urban
Corporation 3 - Joint 3502208399 02/01/2019  Area, An Loi 19,050,000 30.00
Stock Company Dong Ward,
District 2, Ho
Chi Minh City,

Vietnam



Digital transformation situation

Over the years, hydrological forecasting, optimal reservoir operation, and dam safety have always been of
interest and closely directed by the Company’s leaders.

Implementing the policies and directions of the Company’s leaders towards building a smart hydropower
plant model. In recent years, the Company has applied many digital transformation solutions to hydrological
forecasting and ensuring the safety of the Thac Ba hydropower dam. Notably, there are two applications:
Synthesizing data from rain gauge stations on the Chay River basin and an automatic dam monitoring system.

To facilitate the monitoring, collection, storage, and exploitation of rain gauge data at automatic rain gauge
stations using vrain technology in the Thac Ba hydropower reservoir basin to serve the operation of the
project, comply with the provisions of the Law, and optimally operate the reservoir, the Company has built
software to synthesize data from rain gauge stations in the basin. The parameters of daily rainfall at the
rain gauge stations help Operation and Electricity Market staff to observe and forecast the water flow to the
reservoir in the next day and next week.
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To have data for monitoring seepage through the main dam body, monitoring the opening of
the deformed joints, reducing manpower, limiting errors, storing and retrieving data series in
real time, creating favorable conditions for assessing the fluctuations of each parameter, the
automatic dam monitoring system solution has been successfully deployed and applied by the
Company. The application greatly helps the operation of the Hydropower Dam to be closely
monitored, ensuring reliable operation.

With a high determination in implementing the digital transformation roadmap, TBC is gradually
promoting the digital transformation process in production and business activities, gradually
moving towards building a smart hydropower plant. In the future, TBC always wishes to connect
and share with units inside and outside the Electricity industry, in all aspects to increasingly
improve and develop more effectively and sustainably.
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Business result of 2024

Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh

a. Advantages Actual Actual

. . Actual 2024/ 2024/
- In 2024, the water flow to the reservoir reached 264.6 m3/s, which was 189% of the flow from No. Detailed description Plan 2024 Actual 2024 2023 Actual Plan
the previous year. This represented an increase of 124.7 m3/s compared to last years value. The 2023 2024
higher water flow created a significant opportunity for the plant’s power generation, enabling the

company to capitalize on the electricity market’s transaction cycles with high selling prices. 1 2 3 4 5 6=4/5 7=413
- All generator uryts operated. stably W|thout S|gn|f|cant failures. The overhaul and maintenance of | HYRDROLOGICAL DATA
the generator units were carried out during downtime by turns and were on schedule.

- The company’s organization was stable and operated effectively, and its financial situation was 1 Waterflow into the 175.3 264.6 139.9 189% 151%
intense and sound. reservoir
- The .company built a pre_stlglous, re!laple, and reputable brand in technical service provision. 5 Res.erv.0|r water level at the 55.86 55 86 56.61 99% 100%
Over time, the number of clients steadily increased. beginning of the year
3 Reseorwaleriovelatine  55.87 57.34 5586  103%  103%
b. Disadvantages Y
- The water level at the beginning of the period reached 55.86m, 0.75m lower than the same period. I POWER GENERATION
- Electricity market activities in 2024 encountered many difficulties. The contracted electricity Power energy quantity
output (Qc) allocated by EVN each month at a rate of 98% has caused great difficulties for the 1 measured at the 357.00 413.61 306.33 135% 116%
company in bidding on the market. In particular, in April, TBC had to return to EVN on the electricity generators
market 2§.6 billion VND because the contrag’fed electricity outpgt (Qc) in April was 35.78 mﬂ_hgn > Commercial power energy 352 65 409 61 303.14 135% 116%
kWh, while the generators were rarely mobilized by EVN, leading to the commercial electricity for sale
delivery output reaching only 14.82 million kWh, 21 million kWh lower than Qc. Contracted power energy o o
- In compliance with the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development’s request to release water 3 quantity (Qc) 271.23 336.34 30988 109% 124%
for irrigation in the 2023-2024 Winter-Spring crop, in the first months of 2024, the Company had to - i
_9 . p 9 Y : pany 4 A\{erage electricty selling 817 779 308 96% 95%
exploit too much water, causing the reservoir water level to drop very low, affecting the strategy of price
bidding for electricity market prices in the dry season.
- Violations of the reservoir corridor and the flood discharge corridor downstream of the river I TOTAL REVENUE 374,549 425,416 326,146 130% 114%
occur frequently and complicatedly, causing the Company to spend a lot of time and resources to
monitor, prevent and handle. IV TOTAL COST 191,003 205,096 155,504 132% 107%
- In particular, due to the impact of the
Yagi), widespread flooding in the Chay River -
Thac Ba Lake basin caused great damage to In which, technical service operating results:
the Northern region and seriously threatened
the safety of the Thac Ba Hydropower Plant Actual
and the downstream area. The storm and 2024/ Actual

No. Detailed description Plan 2024 Actual 2024 2024/Plan
2024

Actual
Hydropower Plant cluster to temporarily stop 2023

flood also forced the Muong Hum - Ban Xeo

production to overcome the consequences.

Construction activiies at the Thac Ba 2 I TOTAL REVENUE 47,122 44,497 20,919 213% 94%
Hydropower Plant site were also interrupted
due to flooding. However, with the spirit of Il TOTAL COST 38,759 34,254 12,240 280% 88%
solidarity, the drastic and timely direction of the
Board of Directors and the Executive Board, Il PROFIT AFTER TAX 6,690 8,195 6,943 118% 122%

along with the efforts, flexibility, experience
and creativity of the staff, TBC has protected
the safety of the project, ensuring the safety of
people and property.
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Hydrological and electricity production situation

- The water level at the beginning of the year reached 55.86m, 0.75m lower than the same period, the
average water flow to the lake in 2024 reached 264.6m3/s, 124.7m3/s higher than the same period,
equivalent to 189%.

- Electricity production reached 413.61 million kWh, 107.28 million kWh higher than the same period,
equivalent to 135%. Commercial electricity output reached 409.61 million kWh, 106.48 million kWh higher
than the same period, equivalent to 135%. The water level at the end of the period was 1.48m higher than
the water level at the same period.

Revenue

Total revenue in 2024 reached 425.4 billion VND, which is 99.3 billion higher than the same period last
year, equivalent to 130% of last year’s value and 114% of the year’s plan.

- Total revenue from electricity production reached 319.1 billion VND, which is 74.3 billion higher than the
same period last year. This figure represents 130% of the previous year’s value and has achieved 111%
of the plan for 2024. The average selling price of electricity amounted to 779 VND per kWh, which is 96%
of last year’s average price.

- Revenue from financing activities reached 58.9 billion VND, exceeding last year’s figure by 1 billion. This
revenue accounted for 102% of the previous year’s total and achieved 159% of the 2024 plan.

- Revenue from the provision of technical services reached 45.9 billion VND, which is 24.1 billion higher
than last year. This revenue mainly came from the contracts related to packages TBC2-10 and TBC2-12
of the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Project.

Cost

Total cost of 205.1 billion VND increased by 49.6 billion, equivalent to 132% over the same period and
equal to 107% compared to the 2024 plan. Of which, O&M cost increased by 8.5 billion (due to local
support cost increased by 2.53 billion; salary increased by 3.7 billion, regular repair cost increased by
VND 1 billion...), resource tax increased by 12.7 billion, forest environment fee increased by 3.8 billion,
service cost increased by 22.6 billion (mainly cost of materials and equipment provided for TBC2-12
package), financial cost increased by 2.6 billion to set aside provision for TBC2 investment loss.

Profit after tax

Profit after tax of 185.0 billion VND, an increase of 39.3 billion over the same period, equivalent to 127%
over the same period and 121% of the 2024 plan.

Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh

Actual Actual
2024/ 2024/

Actual Plan

2023 2024

1 2 3 4 5 6=4/5 7=4/3

|  POWER GENERATION

Power energy quantity measured
at the generators

2 Commercial power energy for sale 150.67 148.19 133.42 111% 98%

Detailed description Plan 2024

155.00 152.36 137.18 111% 98%

3 Average electricty selling price 1,319 1,305 1,330 98% 99%
I TOTAL REVENUE 200,964 193,824 180,243 108% 96%
[l TOTAL COST 81,649 84,730 88,314 96% 104%

IV PROFIT AFTER TAX 113,348 103,128 87,462 118% 91%

Power energy production

The power energy production in 2024 reached 152.36 million kWh, reflecting an increase of 15.17 million
kWh compared to last year. The commercial power energy available for sale was 148.19 million kWh,
which is a rise of 14.77 million kWh compared to last year, representing 111% of last year’s value.

Total revenue

Total revenue in 2024 reached VND 193.8 billion, which is 13.5 billion higher than the same period last
year, equivalent to 108% of last year’s value and 96% of the plan for 2024.

Total cost

- The total cost in 2024 was VND 84.7 billion VND, marking a decrease of 3.6 billion VND, which is 96%
of the previous year’s total and 104% of the plan for 2024. The decrease in the total cost was primarily
attributed to a reduced 5.7 billion dong in the financing activities.

- Subsequently, the profit after tax reached VND 103.1 billion VND, reflecting an increase of 15.7 billion
VND compared to the same period last year, equaling 118% of the previous year’s profit and 91% of the
plan for 2024.

Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh

Actual

Actual 2024/ Actual

Detailed description Plan 2024 Actual 2024 2023 2024/Plan

Actual

2023 2024

1 2 3 4 5 6=4/5 7=4/3

|  POWER GENERATION

1 Power energy production 512.00 565.97 443 .51 128% 111%
g Fommercialpowereneroy 503 32 557.80 43656  128% 111%
Il TOTAL REVENUE 542499 552489 443523  125% 102%
Il TOTAL COST 284,148 282515 246549  115% 99%
IV PROFIT BEFORE TAX 258351 269974 196,974  137% 104%
v $E)'§'(DC?$)ATE oli1= 36,675 41353 28360  146% 113%
VI PROFIT AFTER TAX 201676 228,621 168,614  136% 103%

Profit from the parent 166,067 178,028 125706  142% 107%

company
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Production and Operating Plan for 2025

Detailed description

HYRDROLOGICAL DATA

Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh

Plan 2025/

Plan2024 ~ Actual 2024  Plan 2025 , . o054

Average water flow into the

1 . 175.3 264.6 175.3 66%
reservoir

2 Res_erv.0|r water level at the 55.86 5586 57 34 103%
beginning of the year

3 Reservoir water level at the 55.87 57 34 5701 99%
end of the year

I POWER GENERATION

1 Powerenergy quantity 357.00 413.61 375.00 91%
measured at the generators

2 S;Ig“me“’ia' STEFOIERIET e 409.61 370.49 90%

3  Contracted power energy 271.23 336.34 333.44 99%
quantity (Qc)

4  Average electricty selling price 817 779 736 94%

Il TOTAL REVENUE 374,549 425,416 350,827 82%

IV TOTAL COST 191,003 205,096 177,747 87%

V  PROFIT AFTER TAX 152,836 185,024 148,284 80%

Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh

Plan 2025/
Plan 2025 Actual
2024

Actual

Plan 2024 2024

Detailed description

I POWER GENERATION

Power energy quantity measured at

155.00 152.36 155.00 102%
the generators

2  Commercial power energy for sale 150.67 148.19 150.67 102%
3  Average electricty selling price 1,319 1,305 1,317 101%
I TOTAL REVENUE 200,964 193,824 200,881 104%
Il TOTAL COST 81,649 84,730 79,034 93%
IV PROFIT AFTER TAX 113,348 103,128 112,708 109%

Technical Service Center’s plan for 2025

Actual Plan 2025/
Detailed description Plan 2024 Plan 2025  Actual
2024
2024
I TOTAL REVENUE 47,122 44,497 13,432 30%
I TOTAL COST 38,759 34,254 7,164 21%
[l PROFIT AFTER TAX 6,690 8,195 5,014 61%



Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh

Targets

POWER GENERATION

Power energy quantity

1 measured at the 51.95
generators
> ]%?r:ar?:rcial power energy ., 49
3 A\{erage electricty selling 1,362
price
I TOTAL REVENUE 68,773
Il TOTAL COST 78,071
IV PROFIT AFTER TAX -9,297
Unit: Million VND; Power energy: Million kWh; Price: VND/kWh
No. Targets Plan 2024 Actual 2024 Plan 2025 :(I:?unalzgggg
I POWER ENERGY
1 Power energy production 512.00 565.97 530.00 94%
2  Commercial power energy for sale 503.32 557.80 521.16 93%
I TOTAL REVENUE 542,499 552,489 500,656 91%
Il TOTAL COST 284,148 282,515 268,268 95%
IV PROFIT BEFORE CIT 258,351 269,974 232,388 86%
V  CORPORATE INCOME TAX (CIT) 36,675 41,353 33,935 82%
VI  PROFIT AFTER TAX 221,676 228,621 198,453 87%
Profit from the parent company 166,067 178,028 143,159 80%

Crucial tasks and solutions

Strengthen the company’s corporate

- Managing subsidiaries to ensure effective
operations, capital preservation and
development.

- Regularly reviewing, revising and perfecting
the internal management regulations system

- Promoting digital transformation in
enterprises. Implementing full, transparent and
legal information disclosure.

- Innovating training to improve human
resources.

- Implementing cost savings and reducing
electricity production costs.

Strengthen technical management
activities

- Strengthen technical management, carry
out major repairs, and periodically maintain
equipment, ensuring that equipment is always
ready to meet the requirements of stable, safe,
and efficient operation.

- Operate the factory safely and stably,
minimizing downtime due to repair,
maintenance, and incidents. Prepare adequate
supplies and spare equipment for repair and
troubleshooting. Thoroughly apply measures
to ensure production safety and prevent fire
and explosion;

- Promote the movement of technical innovation
initiatives.

- Strengthen the team of safety and hygiene
officers, regularlyinspectand monitormachinery
and equipment with strict requirements

Improve the efficiency of the electricity
market

Regularly update forecast hydrological
information of Thac Ba Lake, closely follow
the market situation to build a reasonable
strategy to optimally exploit the reservoir's
water volume. Implement synchronous plans
from the beginning of the year to maximize
economic efficiency from the electricity market.

Complete construction equipment upgrade

projects

TBC continues to implement the upgrade
projects for the Thac Ba Hydropower Plant’s
equipment from 2022 to 2025. These projects
should be completed by December 31st, 2025.
Following the completion, the company will
conduct the final settlement of these projects
to enter into negotiations on the electricity price
for the next operational cycle of the Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant.

Expand and promote investment activities

- TBC assists TBC2 in completing the trial run
and acceptance procedures for three generator
units atthe Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Plant, aiming
for the units’ power generation to commence in
the first quarter of 2025.

- TBC encourages initiatives to pursue
investment opportunities in power generation
projects.

- TBC will enhance the company’s management
and support for the child company to ensure the
child company’s stable power generation and
improve its overall business effectiveness.

Promote technical service activities

- TBC ensures the effective implementation
of the repair and maintenance of equipment
at Muong Hum Hydropower Plant, Ban Xeo
Hydropower Plant, and Thac Ba 2 HPP.

- TBC strengthens supervision and expedites
the completion of two bidding packages, TBC2-
10 and TBC2-12, of the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower
Project.

- TBC maintains strong communication
with technical service clients, implementing
customer care programs and enhance
relationships with strategic technical service
partners and clients in the Northern region.

- TBC ensures the successful execution of
technical service contracts signed with its
clients, thereby enhancing the reputation and
competitiveness of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company and the Technical Service
Center in the technical service provision market.



Occupational safety and health, fire prevention and control, natural disaster
prevention

- Complete on schedule the handling of downstream landslides after the factory, the ene
dissipation yard and both sides of the river near the Thac Ba hydropower plant.
- Hire a consultant to calculate downstream hydraulics and develop an emergency response
for the dam and reservoir of the Thac Ba hydropower plant and submit it to the competent a
for approval.
- Calculate and develop a flood discharge plan for the Thac Ba hydropower reservoir and ¢
to the competent authority for consideration, and develop a project to build an additiona
to increase the flood discharge capacity of the Thac Ba hydropower plant when reques
competent authority.
- Organize well the quarterly incident handling drills with the integration of coordinated
drills between units in the Company.
- Regularly rectify the implementation of the Procedures, Internal Rules, labor di
Environmental Protection Regulations.
- Strengthen on-site inspections, promptly detect and prevent existing shortcomings
units and individuals violating occupational safety and health - fire preventio
environment.
- Regulalrl_xqu_;gg]_itgr{_gn ite the amount of water flowing into the lake as
situation in the basin t ods and storms; ensure absolute ¢
- - Coordinate with do > and warn people to p
- storms and floods I-UF
. i
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Assessments of the Board of Directors on
the Company’s operation

In 2024, the business activities of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company have experienced many
difficulties and challenges as summarized below:

- The electricity market experienced significant difficulties due to a high allocation ratio of contracted
electricity output (98%), along with a lower average electricity selling price compared to 2023.

- The most challenging aspect was the devastating impact of Typhoon No. 3, known internationally as
Yagi. This typhoon caused extensive flooding in the catchment areas of the Chay River and Thac Ba
Lake, leading to severe damage in the Northern region. It posed a serious risk to the safety of the Thac
Ba Hydropower Plant Construction and the downstream areas. Additionally, the storm and flooding forced
the Muong Hum - Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant complex to shut down temporarily for an extended period
in order for the MHP company to tackle all the consequences in the aftermath of the natural disaster.
Furthermore, construction and installation activities at the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Project site were
disrupted due to the floods.

- However, through the spirit of solidarity, the decisive and timely actions taken by the Board of Directors
and the Board of Management, and the exceptional efforts, flexibility, experience, and ongoing creativity of
the staff, TBC has successfully safeguarded the construction of the Thac Ba Hydropower Plant, ensured
the safety of people and property and achieved very impressive operating results for 2024. The financial
and technical outcomes have surpassed the targets set in the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders.

The summary of 2024 business operation results of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company is
described in the following table:

2024 Operating results

Detailed description
MHP Consolidated

I POWER ENERGY

1 Power energy production Million kWh 413.61 152.36 565.97
g commercialpowerenerayfor wiyjon kwh 409,61 148.19 557.80
Il TOTAL REVENUE Milion VND 425416 193,824 552,489
Il TOTAL COST Milion VND 205,096 84,730 282,515
IV PROFIT BEFORE CIT Milion VND 220,321 109,094 269,974
v (CC?TR)PORATE INCOMETAX " \lilion ND 35,297 5,966 41,353
VI PROFIT AFTER TAX Milion VND 185,024 103,128 228,621

Profit from the parent company 178,028

Comments and assessment

Power energy production operation

The Thac Ba Hydropower Plant and the
Muong Hum - Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant
Complex were safely managed and operated
without any incidents affecting the safety of
the plants, employees, or equipment. Due to
the impact of floods, Muong Hum Hydropower
Plant had to temporarily stop production for 4
days, Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant temporarily

Implementation of the investment and
upgrade project to the Thac Ba Hydropower
Plant’s construction

- Package “Providing materials and equipment
to upgrade generators”. Unit 1 of Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant was repaired and upgraded
on August 1, 2024 and officially put into
commercial operation from February 5, 2025.
Unit 2 is expected to be put into commercial
operation before June 7, 2025, Unit 3 is
expected to be put into commercial operation
before November 16, 2025.

-In 2024, the General Meeting of Shareholders
approved the additional adjustment of FS,
accordingly, the additional items include:
Bearing seismang; Generator relay system;
Generator cooling system; Turbine cover
detection mechanism; Vibration and run-out
measurement system. Currently, the bidding
has been opened and the bidding documents
are being evaluated for the following
packages: Supply, dismantling and installation
of generator protection relay system; Supply
of generator cooling system for generator set.
Announced for bidding: Supply of piston rings,
ball cap bolts, elastic discs for generator set -
Thac Ba Hydropower Plant; Supply of turbine

bearing leakage protection mechanism for
generator set; Supply and installation of
vibration and run-out measurement equipment
system for generator set.

- Other projects under the investment project,
upgrading equipment and works of Thac
Ba Hydropower Plant such as: Upgrading
electrical equipment, replacing 220VDC
battery system, upgrading high-pressure air
compression system, upgrading low-pressure
air compression system, replacing 110kV line
protection relay system have been completed
in 2024 or will be completed in 2025, meeting
progress requirements.

Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Plant Construction
Investment Project

Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Plant (18.9MW)
has completed construction and is currently
completing legal procedures to put into
commercial operation , expected to:

- Completion acceptance and COD of unit 1:
March 12, 2025.

- Completion acceptance and COD of unit 2:
March 17, 2025.

- Completion acceptance and COD of unit 3:
March 22 , 2025.

Technical service activities

Completed the contracts for the packages
“TBC2-10: Installation and testing of
electromechanical equipment” and “TBC2-
12: Supply and installation of transformer
station testing” for the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower
Project” and the contract TBC2-12: “Supply,
installation and testing of electrical equipment
for the 110/6.3kV transformer station; Supply
of equipment, construction of the 110kV line
connecting the plant to the power system;
Supply of communication and SCADA
equipment” under the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower
Project”.
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Operati
compar

The hydrological data and actual power
generation

Average water flow to the lake in 2024 is: 264.6 m3/s,
124.7 m3/s higher than the same period:

- Lake water level at the beginning of the year
(January 1, 2024): 55.86 m.

- Lake water level at the end of December 31, 2024:
57.34 m.

- The electricity output of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant
in 2024 will reach 413.61 million kWh, 107.28 million
kWh higher than the same period, equivalentto 135%
over the same period and reaching 116% compared
to the plan approved by the 2024 Shareholders’
Meeting.

- Commercial electricity output in 2024 reached
409.61 million kWh, 106.47 million kWh higher than
the same period, equivalent to 135% over the same
period and reaching 116% compared to the plan
approved by the 2024 Shareholders’ Meeting.

Revenue

Total revenue in 2024 reached 425.4 billion VND,
which is 99.2 billion higher than the same period last
year and equivalent to 130% over the same period
and reaching 114% of the plan approved by the 2024
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Cost

- TBC’s total cost in 2024 is 205 billion VND,
representing an increase of 49.5 bilion VND
compared to the same period last year. This figure
shows 132% of that of the previous year and reaches
107% of the target approved by the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders.

- Reasons for the increased costs: mainly due to
increased costs for natural disaster prevention
and recovery (typhoon No. 3 Yagi), natural water
resource consumption tax and forest environmental
service fees.

Profit after tax

In 2024, the profit after tax reached 185 billion VND,
reflecting an increase of 39.3 billion VND compared
to the same period last year. This figure represents
127% of last year's profit and 121% of the plan
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
for 2024.

Operating resi

(1) Power Energy Production

- The power energy production of Muong Hum - Ban Xeo HPP Complex in 2024 reached 152.36
million kWh, representing an increase of 15.18 million kWh and being equivalent to 111% of that
of the same period last year and reached 98% of the plan.

- In 2024, the commercial power energy for sale reached 148.19 million kWh. This amount is an
increase of 14.77 million kWh compared to the previous year. This figure represents 111% of that
of the same period last year and is equal to 98% of that of the plan.

- The main reason for the power energy production not fulfilling the plan: Due to flooding,
the Muong Hum Hydropower Plant was temporarily halted for four days, while the Ban Xeo
Hydropower Plant was shut down for 66 days to address the consequences of the floods.

(2) Revenue

- Total revenue in 2024 reached 193.8 billion VND, which is 13.5 billion higher than the same
period last year, equivalent to 108% over the same period and reaching 96% of the plan.

- The primary reason for the revenue not reaching the plan is that the quantity of power generation
energy was decreased as a result of the flooding.

(3) Cost

- The total cost is 84.7 billion VND, which is 3.5 billion VND, equivalent to 96% of the previous
year and equal to 104% of the plan.

- The reason for the increased total cost is mainly due to the activities of natural disaster prevention
and mitigation.

(4) Profit After Tax
The profit after tax reached 103.1 billion VND, reflecting an increase of 15.6 billion VND and
being equal to 127% of last year’s profit and reached 91% of the plan.

Consolidated c

ﬁ-@ Power energy production: 565.97 million kWh, reaching 111% of the plan.

A ommercial power energy: .8 million :
C ial 557.8 million kWh
':’ reaching 111% of the plan.

@/““ Total revenue: 552 million VND, reaching 102% of the plan.

'-@:‘ Total cost: 284.1 billion VND, reaching 99% of the

ﬂﬂ plan.

ﬁ@ Profit before tax: 269.9 billion VND, reaching 104% of the plan.

@\’ Profit after tax: 228.6 billion VND, reaching 103% of
EI[“] the plan.



Assessment of Board of Directors on
Board of Management and
Manager’s performance

The Board of Directors supervises the General Director through the following main contents:

« Establishing and implementing the planning targets approved by the Board of Directors/General Meeting
of Shareholders;

* Financial, cost and human resource management;

* Implement the Resolutions of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors has monitored the completeness of the above contents through the agenda of the
Board of Directors meetings. Regarding the effectiveness, efficiency and suitability, the Board of Directors
has exchanged, discussed and questioned the General Director and the Executive Board at the quarterly
Board of Directors meetings; monthly reports; through email, phone and meeting exchanges. Difficult and
problematic issues have been identified and resolved thoroughly and promptly.

The Board of Directors closely coordinates with the Supervisory Board to monitor and support the
Executive Board in improving the effectiveness of the control system, the suitability and reliability of the
Financial Reports as well as corporate governance. The opinions of the Supervisory Board are carefully
considered and weighed in the decisions of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors discussed and approved decisions by Resolution/Minutes after each meeting on:
plans for the next quarter and related issues for the General Director to implement.

The managers possess the appropriate professional qualifications and expertise for their assigned roles,
demonstrating competence, professional ethics, and the necessary dedication to fulfill and complete their
responsibilities. Their collaboration and strong internal unity have fostered a professional, friendly, and
cohesive working environment, enabling the Company to achieve its assigned objectives.
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2025 Plans and Orientations of
the Board of Directors

» Develop the company to scale up power generation while maintaining sustainable growth in revenue
and profit to enhance shareholder value. Optimize existing assets, manage costs effectively, and invest
in the power production sector;

» Ensure that construction and equipment management prioritize safety and operational efficiency,
maximizing revenue and profit. Leverage resources effectively to develop technical services, which is a
key strength of the company

* Operate the company with transparency and adhere to the best governance practices

* Oversee the child companies and affiliates to ensure their effective operations and preserve and grow
their capital.

2025 Production and Busines Plan

Detailed description

TBC MHP Consolidated

I POWER ENERGY

1 Power energy production Million kWh 375.00 155.00 530.00
2 g;’lg"memia' powerenergy for  yuiionkwh 37049 150.67 521.16
I TOTAL REVENUE Million VND 350,827 200,881 500,656
Il TOTAL COST Million VND 177,747 79,034 268,268
IV PROFIT BEFORE CIT Million VND 173,080 121,846 232,388
v fC?TR)PORATE INCOMETAX " \lilion VND 24,796 9,138 33,935
VI PROFIT AFTER TAX Million VND 148,284 112,708 198,453

VIl DIVIDEND RATE 20%

Operations, Finance, and Investment

- Manage the Thac Ba Hydropower Plant and the Muong Hum - Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant Complex to
ensure safe and economical operations. This includes effectively implementing natural disaster prevention
measures and labor protection protocols, optimizing reservoir usage, and participating in the electricity
market.

- Ensure proper management of financial investments to meet revenue targets outlined in the financial
activity plan.

- Focus on the implementation and management of the equipment upgrade project for the Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant, ensuring quality and adherence to the timeline from 2021 to 2025..

- Manage and oversee Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment Joint Stock Company (TBC2) to ensure
effective operations.

- Continue researching, surveying, evaluating, and making the master plan for the expansion of the Muong
Hum Power Plant.

- Continue searching for opportunities and evaluate investment projects in the field of power generation.

Customer Service

- Carry out effective customer care programs for the customers who purchase the company’s electricity
and utilize its technical services.

- Maintain regular communication with partners, particularly local authority agencies.

- Expand the market and range of services offered by TBCSC. Continue providing technical services
to clients in the Northern region while strengthening collaborations with key domestic and international
partners, focusing on high quality technical services.

Business Procedures and Internal Corporate

- Emphasize training and enhancing the quality of the company’s human resources.

- Ensure strict adherence to monthly and quarterly reporting on key production and operating results.

- Establish clear and transparent management structures and delegation of authority at all levels of the
company, ensuring that each individual’s responsibilities are well-defined in relation to their specific work
domain they are in charge.

- Conduct regular reviews and updates of regulations and standard procedures for managing and
operating machinery, equipment, and construction works. Promote the use of information technology in
management and operations

- Apply ISO and 5S management systems effectively and practically.

- Strengthen collaboration with local authorities to promptly identify, prevent, and address encroachments
on the reservoir, dams, and downstream riverside areas.

Organizational Capacity

- The company aims to establish a lean organizational structure by emphasizing training and human
resource development while further optimizing the company’s existing workforce.

- The company will raise employee awareness regarding self-implementation, self-awareness, continuous
improvement, and optimization as core actions throughout the company’s business operation. Itis essential
that any increase in income of employess is accompanied by their enhancements in labor productivity and
work efficiency.

- The company is committed to creating a friendly working environment and fostering a corporate culture
that reflects its unique identity, honors traditional values, and emphasizes the company’s Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) in society.
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Board of Directors

The date becoming/ceasing to be a
member of the Board of Directors

Members of the Board of

Directors

Position
Date of

. Date of dismissal
appointment

1 Mr. Nguyen Quang Quyen Chairman of the BODs 15/04/2016

Members of the BODs,

2 Mr. Nguyen Van Quyen General Director 17/03/2017
3 Mr. Le Tuan Hai '”depe"tﬂ‘;”égg?bers of  28/03/2017
4  Mr. Ho Van Trung Non'exefﬁé"’BeorBZmberS of  15/04/2016 20/09/2024
Non-executive members of
5 Mr. Nguyen Van Da the BODs 25/03/2022
. Non-executive members of
6 Mr. Tran Ky Hai 20/09/2024

the BODs
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Members of the Board of Number o Reasons for
, meetings attended Attendance rate
Directors absence
by the member
1 Mr. Nguyen Quang Quyen 37 100%
2 Mr. Nguyen Van Quyen 37 100%
3  Mr. Le Tuan Hai 37 100%
Dismissed on
o,
4  Mr. Ho Van Trung 27 73% 20/09/2024
5  Mr. Nguyen Van Da 37 100%
6  Mr. Tran Ky Hai 10 27% Appointed on

20/09/2024

The Board of Directors regularly closely monitors, urges and guides the Board of Management to implement
the 2024 production and business plan according to the Company’s medium and long-term development
strategy and the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, Resolutions and Decisions of the
Board of Directors and the Company’s internal management regulations. The results of supervision of the
Board of Management are as follows:

- Ensure compliance with current legal regulations (Law on Enterprises; Law on Securities and Law on
Securities amended and supplemented in 2019; Decree 155/2020/ND-CP of the Government; Circular
No. 96/2020/TT-BTC, Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC and Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC of the Ministry of
Finance) on corporate governance. Disclose full and correct information on the production and business
situation to shareholders, investors, state management agencies and related parties on the basis of
transparency, accuracy and timeliness.

- Manage and operate the Company and its subsidiaries according to best governance practices.

- Maintain a monthly/quarterly/annual reporting regime to the Board of Directors of the Board of
Management on the business and operation situation of the Company.

- Maintain a regime of ad hoc reporting and timely direction on unusual issues occurring in production and
business activities that affect the operating results of the Company.

- Non-executive members of the Board of Directors and independent members of the Board of Directors
have actively contributed to improving the independence, objectivity, transparency, efficiency and quality
of the decisions of the Board of Directors.

The Company’s Board of Directors has not established any subcommittees.
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Resolution/Decision
No.

45/NQ-TBTB-HDPQT

08/01/2024

Content

Approval of the Contract Amendment No. 02
of Contract No. 2222/HD-TBTB-AH dated
December 20th, 2022, package: " Material
and Equipment Supply for the Upgrade on
the Generating Units".

Approval

rate

100%

10

Resolution/Decision
No.

664/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

17/04/2024

Content

Approval of the 2024 bid selection
contractor.

Approval
rate

100%

139/NQ-TDTB-HPQT

22/01/2024

Approval of the Technical Economic Report
of the Project “Replacement of the 110kV
Feeder Protection Relay System - Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant”.

100%

11

667/NQ-TDTB-HDQT

17/04/2024

Adjust the schedule and duration of the
contract "Material and equipment supply for
the upgrade on the generating units" and
the project "Upgrade on the generating unit
equipment - Thac Ba Hydropower Plant."

100%

140/NQ-TDTB-HBQT

22/01/2024

Approval of the “Organization of the 2024
Annual General Shareholder Meeting.”

100%

178/NQ-TDTB-HDQT

26/01/2024

Approval of the final implementation of the
2023 salary fund.

100%

12

709/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

24/04/2024

Re-appointment of the General Director of
Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

100%

262/NQ-TDTB-HDQT

20/02/2024

Approval of the bid selection plan for
the project: "Replacement of 110kV
feeder protection relay system - Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant".

100%

13

734/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

13/05/2024

Approve the bonus fund of the company's
Executive Board; Finalization of the 2023
salary and remuneration fund for the Board
of Directors, Board of Supervisors and
General Director.

100%

370/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

05/03/2024

Approval the adjustment of some contents of
the Feasibility Study Report on investment
in construction of the project "Upgrade on
the generating unit equipment - Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant".

100%

14

736/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

13/05/2024

Approval of the Contract Amendment No. 3
of Contract No. 2222/HD-TDTB-AH dated
December 20th, 2022, package: " Material
and Equipment Supply for the Upgrade on
the Generating Units".

100%

372/NQ-TBTB-HDBQT

05/03/2024

Approve the agenda of the 2024 annual
shareholder meeeting and documents and
reports to be submitted at the 2024 annual
shareholder meeeting.

100%

15

795/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

10/05/2024

Approve adjustment of bid selection plan
for the package "Supply, installation,
testing and commissioning of the 110kV
feeder protection relay system - Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant".

100%

843/NQ-TBTB-HDQT

25/03/2024

Approve the finacial support for an
employee of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company who is suffering from
critical illness and is in financial deprivation
and requesting an agreement to terminate
his labor contract with the company.

100%

16

896/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

27/05/2024

Approval of the bid selection plan for
the package of Surveying and exploring
termite nests of the dams of the Thac Ba
Hydropower Reservoir.

100%

600/NQ-TDTB-HDQT

10/04/2024

Approval of the bid selection plan for the
package "Provision of electronic power
meters."

100%

17

953/Qb-TBTB-HDbQT

03/06/2024

Pay the remaining dividends of 2023 in
cash.

100%

18

1009/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

10/06/2024

Approval of the Equity Transfer Plan at HND

100%

19

1055/NQ-TDTB-HDPQT

18/06/2024

Approval of a loan for TBC2 project.

100%
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20

Resolution/Decision
No.

1219/NQ-TDTB-HDPQT

28/06/2024

Content

Re-appointment of the Plant Operation
Department Manager.

Approval
rate

100%

31

Resolution/Decision
No.

2228/NQ-TBTB-HDBQT

22/10/2024

Content

Approval of additional plan to purchase
Fixed Assets for 2024.

Approval
rate

100%

21

1221/NQ-TDBTB-HDBQT

28/06/2024

Approval of the Equity Transfer Plan at
HND (stage 2)

100%

22

1269/NQ-TDTB-HDQT

10/07/2024

Approve an auditing organization to audit
the company’s financial statement.

100%

23

1319/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

18/07/2024

Nominate personnel to participate in the
management of TBC2 company.

100%

32

2267/NQ-TBTB-HDBQT

28/10/2024

Approval of the Investment Policy for
the Downstream Landslide Treatment
Project - Thac Ba Hydropower Plant and
the bid selection plan for the consultancy
package “Making a feasibility study report
and designing construction drawings,
Downstream Landslide Treatment Project
- Thac Ba Hydropower Plan.”

100%

24

1451/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

01/08/2024

Organize an extraordinary shareholder
meeting.

100%

25

1658/NQ-TBTB-HDQT

22/08/2024

Approve the interim dividend payment for
2024 for the 1st time.

100%

26

1771/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

30/08/2024

Approval of the 2024 fixed asset sale
plan and amendment of some internal
management regulations.

100%

33

2412/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

08/11/2024

- Approval of the Board of Management'’s
report on the business performance
of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock
Company up to October 31th, 2024.

- Stop the project “Investing in the lifting
equipment of the spillway - Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant.”

- Approval of the “Internal Audit” plan for
2024.

100%

27

1773/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

30/08/2024

Approval of adjustment of the bid selection
plan for the package "Supply and installation
of 110kV current transformers, 110kV
voltage transformers and 110kV circuit
breakers" & Approval of additional major
repair plan for 2024.

100%

34

2558/NQ-TBTB-HBQT

05/12/2024

Approval of the Bidr Selection Plan for
the consultancy package: Appraisal of the
Feasibility Study Report and Construction
Design of the downstream landslide
treatment project - Thac Ba Hydropower
Project.

100%

28

1866/NQ-TDTB-HDPQT

15/09/2024

Approved finacial support for the people
in the downstream area of Thac Ba Lake
affected by storm No. 3 (Yagi).

100%

35

2621/NQ-TBTB-HBQT

11/12/2024

Approve the interim dividend payment for
2024 for the 2nd time.

100%

29

2131/NQ-TBTB-HBQT

08/10/2024

Re-appointment to the position of Deputy
Manager of the Plan and Material Supply
Department.

100%

36

2634/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

11/12/2024

Approval on principle for engaging
consultants to survey, evaluate, calculate,
consider, and propose options for
constructing an additional spillway for
improvement of the plant’s flood discharge
capacity of Thac Ba Hydropower Plant.

100%

30

2204/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

21/10/2024

Approval of the bid selection plan for the
package "Auditing the final settlement
reports of completed construction
investment projects" and the bid selection
plan for the second stage of the project
“Upgrade on the generating unit equipment
- Thac Ba Hydropower Plant".

100%

37

2714/NQ-TDTB-HDBQT

23/12/2024

Approval of the cost of "Providing
Meteorological - Hydrological forecasting
information for the operation of Thac Ba
Hydropower in 2025"

100%

38

2741/NQ-TBTB-HDBQT

25/12/2024

Approve the contracts, agreements
between TBC with its internal person, with
affiliated people of TBC’s internal person
or with affiliated people of TBC

100%




== Thac Ba Hydropower

Activities of the Board of Direc
Nil

Activities of the independent n
of Directors

* In the fiscal year 2024, the independent member of the Board of Directors
of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company participated in the process of
monitoring, evaluating, and providing independent feedback on resolutions,
decisions, and other activities of the Board of Directors.

* In addition, the independent member fulfilled the responsibilities of the
Manager of the Internal Audit Committee in accordance with the Internal
Audit Regulations. He submitted the 2024 Internal Audit Plan to the Board
of Directors for approval and subsequently organized and implemented the
plan.

* The independent member of the Board of Directors directly participated in
directions of the following areas delegated by the Board of Directors:

- Directing and supervising the activities of making annual business plans
and monitoring the overall technical domain at Thac Ba Hydropower Plant
and the Muong Hum - Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant Complex.

- Appraising the items belonging to the upgrade project on the equipment of
Thac Ba Hydropower Plant for the period of 2021 to 2025.

Comments of the independen
of Directors on Board of Direc

* In the fiscal year 2024, the Board of Directors of Thac Ba Hydropower
Joint Stock Company carried out their responsibilities in accordance with
the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, following the
provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Company’s Charter, and internal
governance regulations. The Board ensured transparency and adhered to
good governance practices. The meetings of the Board of Directors were
conducted meticulously, with plans, programs, and documents carefully
prepared in compliance with regulations

* The Board of Directors successfully completed the task of supervising
the Board of Management and other management staff organizing and
implementing the tasks set by the resolutions and decisions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders/Board of Directors.

* All members of the Board of Directors demonstrated a strong sense of
responsibility and professionalism, maintaining prudence in their roles as
members of the Board of Directors.
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Board of Supervisors

The date
Members of Board of " bec_omlng/ e a
: Position ceasing to be Qualification
Supervisors
the member of
the BOSs
1 Ms. Nguyen Thi Huynh Phuong ~ Head of Boardof 45040016 Bachelor of
Supervisors Accounting
2 Ms. Tran Nguyen Khanh Linh ~ Membersof Board 553,547 Bachelor of
of Supervisors Accounting

Members of Board of Numper o Attendance \/elilgle Reasons for
: meetings
Supervisors rate rate absence
attended
1 Ms. Nguyen Thi Huynh Phuong 3 100% 100%
2 Ms. Tran Nguyen Khanh Linh 3 100% 100%
3  Ms. Lai Le Huong 3 100% 100%

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the report on business performance, financial report for
2023 and periodic control of the Company’s activities for the first 6 months of 2024; reviewed the
Management Assessment Report of the Board of Directors and submitted the report at the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors regularly monitors and checks the rationality, legality, honesty and
prudence in the management and operation of business activities; the systematicity, consistency
and appropriateness of accounting, statistics and financial reporting.

The Board of Supervisors actively coordinates closely with the Board of Management, Board of
Directors and other managers in inspecting and supervising all production and business activities
of the Company. Regularly exchange information and related documents.

The Board of Management, Board of Directors and other managers regularly create favorable
conditions for the Board of Supervisors in collecting information and documents related to the
production and business activities of the Company.

Enhancing Corporate Governance

In 2024, the company implemented the BRAVO ERP software for financial-accounting
management and human resource management. The BRAVO software has proven highly
effective, offering numerous optimized operational features. By adopting Industry 4.0 technology
applications, the company has successfully reduced the workload for the accounting department
and other divisions while improving governance efficiency and ease of management.
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Transactions, remunerations of the Board
of Directors, Board of Management

The company implements remuneration payments in accordance with the resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of Directors determines the salary, rewards, and other

financial benefits of the General Director, specifically as follows:

2023 2024

No. Name Position . .
Remunerations Remunerations

| Board of Directors

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

—_—

Nguyen Quang Quyen 72,000,000 72,000,000

Members of the

2 Nguyen Van Quyen Board of Directors, 72,000,000 72,000,000
General Director
Members of the

Board of Directors

3  HoVan Trung 72,000,000 54,000,000

Members of the
Board of Directors

5  Le Tuan Hai Members of the 72,000,000 72,000,000
Board of Directors

4 Tran Ky Hai 18,000,000

Members of the

6 Nguyen Van Da Board of Directors 72,000,000 72,000,000
I Board of Management and
Chief Accountant
1 Nguyen Van Quyen General Director 1,008,000,000 1,080,000,000
2 Nguyen Manh Cuong Depgt.y General 741,000,000 805,000,000
irector
3 Nguyen Thanh Hai Dengy General 38,000,000 -
irector
4 BuiHoang Deputy General 690,000,000 749,000,000
Director
5  Le Hong Minh Chief Accountant 701,000,000 763,000,000
Il Board of Supervisors
1 Nguyen Thi Huynh Phuong Head of Board of 72,000,000 72,000,000
Supervisors
2 Tran Nguyen Khanh Linh Members of Board of ¢ 300 900 60,000,000
Supervisors
3 LailLe Huong Members of Board of g 509 90 60,000,000

Supervisors

Transactions between the Company and its affiliated persons or between the Company and its major
shareholders, internal persons and affiliated persons.

Name of

Relationship Resolution/Decision

No. organization/ with the Time qf No. approved by Content, quantity, .total value of
Z transaction . transaction
individual company General Meeting

Electricity
Power Affiliated From Resolution no. 837/
, Trading person 01/01/2024 to NQ-TBTB-HPQT on 1. Revenue from electricity
Company of major 05/07/2012 of the sales: 319,144,354,608 VND
: 31/12/2024 :
- Vietnam shareholder Board of Directors.
Electricity
1. Payment of the first interim
dividend for 2023 in cash,
H O,
Resolution no. 2072/ gg;g’a'enzhg’rtel% g: Ittg?
NQ/TDTB-HDQT on 38,365,168 000 VND
06/12/2023 of the DR .
) . . Payment of the remaining
BOD; Resolution no. dividend for 2023 in cash
506/NQ-TBTB-BDHBCD : ’
equivalent to 10% of the
on 27/03/2024 of .
. 2023 charter capital:
R.E.E Energy From the General Meeting
Parent 38,365,168,000 VND
2 Company Compan 01/01/2024 to of Shareholders Pavment of the first interim
Limited Pany  31/12/2024  (GMS); Decisionno. > &Y .
R dividend for 2024 in cash,
953/TBTB-P5 ngay i
equivalent to 10% of the
03/06/2024 of the I
BOD: Resolution 2024 charter capital:
no.1658/NQ-TBTB- 35.3’365’1 68,000 VND
] : Disclosure of the second
HDQT; Resolution no. - i dividend for 2024
2621/NQ-TDTB-HDPQT e enc 1o ’
equivalent to 5% of the
2024 charter capital:
19,182,584,000 VND
1. Payment of the first interim
dividend for 2023 in cash,
equivalent to 10% of the
! 2023 charter capital:
Resolution no. 2072/ 19,050,000,000 VND
NQ-TBTB-HBPQT on .
2. Payment of the remaining
06/12/2023 of the 2 .
) . dividend for 2023 in cash,
BOD; Resolution no. equivalent to 10% of the
506/NQ-TDTB-DHDCH 9 o Of e
Power 2023 charter capital:
. From on 27/03/2024 of the
Generation ] . 19,050,000,000 VND
3 . Blockholder 01/01/2024 to GMS; Decision no. )
Joint Stock 3. Payment of the first
Corporation 3 3¥112/2024 994/TPTB-PS on interim dividend for 2024
P 03/06/2024 of the ! .
) ; in cash, equivalent to
BOD; Resolution no. 10% of the charter capital:
1658/NQ.-TDTB-HDQT; 19.050,000,000 VND
Resolution no. 2621/ . o
4. Disclosure of the interim

NQ-IBTB-HRQT dividend for 2024 in cash,

equivalent to 5% of the
2024 charter capital:
9,525,000,000 VND




Trz= Transactions between the Company and other parties

) . Resolution/ - Transactions between the Company and companies where members of the Board of Directors,
No orrN:rT?faﬁzn / Re\l{?:LOFhS;'p Time of Decision No. Content, quantity, total value of members of the Board of Supervisory, the General Director, and other managers have been or
' ig dividual company transaction approved by transaction are currently founding members or members of the Board of Directors, or have held executive
General Meeting positions within the past three (03) years: Nil.
1. Revenue from rendering of - Transactions between the Company and companies where affiliated persons of members of the
services: 39,586,773,761 VND BOD, members of the SB, the General Director, and other managers are members of the BOD
. 2. Other revenue: 240,000,000 . . o
Thac Ba 2 From Resolution VND or Chief Executive Officer: Nil.
Investment . No. 1604/NQ- . o
4 Hvdropower Associated  01/01/2024 TPTB-HPQT on 3. Capital contribution: ] ) ) ] ] ]
yarop 19.208.490.000 VND - Other transactions of the company (if any) that may bring material or non-material benefits to
Joint Stock company to 11/09/2023 of the ,208,450, . . .
31/12/2024 4. Loans: 10,000,000,000 VND members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisory, the General Director,
Company BOD . e
5. Revenue from  rendering and other managers: Nil.
of guarantee services:
927,501,207 VND Shi
CO
1. Loan principal repayment: No occurrence in 2024
22,412,500,000 VND
2. Loan interest: 5,291,192,122
VND
Resolution 3. Revenue from service
contracts: 300,000,000 VND
no. 1492/INQ- = i revenue: 180,000,000
TDTB-HDPQT on ' VND ’ ’ ’
30/09/2019 of the .
i . 5. Payment of the remaining 2023
BOD; Resolution . X
Muong Hum From no. 316/NQ- dividend in cash at 9.1% of
Hydropower - 01/01/2024 : 2023 charter capital received:
> JointStock  Subsidiary 0 TOTB-HDQT on 23,559,235,700 VND
10/03/2023 of the ) L
Company 31/12/2024 i . 6. Payment of the first interim
BOD; Resolution . .
dividend for 2024 in cash,
no. 1604/NQ- :
equivalent to 0,7% of the
TOTB-HDQT on charter capital: 1,812,248,900
11/09/2023 of the VND pital: 1,612,246,
BOD 7. Disclosure of the second interim
dividend for 2024 in cash,
equivalent to 6,3% of the 2024
charter capital: 16,310,240,100
VND
Indochina From Resolution
Electrical Subsidiary no. 1604/NQ- .
6 Development inthe same 01/01/2024 TPTB-HDPQT on Rev.enug from rendering  of
. to services: 594,360,694 VND
Joint Stock group 11/09/2023 of the
30/06/2024
Company BOD

Transactions between the company’s internal persons, affiliated persons of internal personnel, and
subsidiaries or companies controlled by the listed company: Nil
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Introduction

The 2024 Sustainable Development Report of Thac Ba
Hydropower Joint Stock Company is integrated into the 2024
Annual Report to avoid information redundancy and provide high-
quality, concise, and precise information for shareholders and
affiliated parties. The purpose of the Sustainable Development
Report is to provide insights into the Company’s development
strategies and policies related to the environment, society,
community, and employees.

Report Objective

The Sustainable Development Report is an essential part of the Annual Report, aiming to
provide investors, shareholders, and affiliated parties with access to information on TBC’s
development strategies and business operations from a sustainable development perspective.
This report will summarize and evaluate the Company’s sustainable development activities.

Report Scope

This report is prepared within the scope of the Company’s operations and its subsidiaries in
the electricity sector, within the territory of Vietnam. The data and information presented in
this report are updated for the 2024 fiscal year, from 01/01/2024 to 31/12/2024.

Report Basis

The report is prepared based on the guidelines for Annual Report preparation under Circular
96/2020/TT-BTC, following the standards of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), specifically
the G4 version under the “Core” option. Additionally, it aligns with the Company’s vision,
development direction, and business strategy.

. 2
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Contact Informati

TBC strives to meet the expectations of affiliated parties through transparent information
disclosure, sustainable growth, and corporate social responsibility. We highly appreciate
your valuable feedback. For any comments or suggestions related to sustainable
development, please contact us at:

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Address: Residential Group 1, Thac Ba Town, Yen Binh District, Yen Bai Province,
Vietnam

Telephone: 0216 388 4116

Fax: 0216 388 4167




Sustainability Development
Message

Dear Shareholders and Affiliated parties,

As the General Director of the Company, | take great pride in
the legacy of Thac Ba Hydropower. Thac Ba Hydropower Plant
is honored to be the first hydropower plant in Northern Vietnam.
Over the past 54 years of development, TBC has consistently
affirmed its position and role as one of the key power sources in
the National Power System. We recognize that the advancement
of our company is closely tied to the prosperity of the communities
we serve. Therefore, from the very beginning, TBC has been
unwavering in its efforts to create the highest value - not only for
our employees but also for our trusted partners and society as a
whole.

We firmly believe that sustainable development is not separate
from our business operations but is inherently embedded in the
way we conduct our activities. In TBC’s long-term development
strategy, sustainability goals serve as a guiding principle, ensuring
that we are on the right path - a path that leads to success while
contributing to the building of a better and more civilized society.
Today, sustainable development has become a shared journey for
all employees of Thac Ba Hydropower. This journey requires every
TBC employee to embrace new mindsets and foster innovation to
create distinctive value for the community - Unleashing the source
of hydropower - Lighting up the future. The Board of Directors
is fully committed to doing everything in its power to ensure that
Thac Ba Hydropower continues to move forward on the path of
sustainable development.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management,
| sincerely appreciate your continued support and interest in the
Company!

General Director

Nguyen Van Quyen




The Board of Management’s assessments

With the message “Harnessing Hydropower - llluminating the Future,” TBC remains committed to
building a stable and sustainable enterprise, ensuring the highest satisfaction for shareholders,
creating a professional and safe working environment for employees, harmonizing the interests of
all stakeholders, and making positive contributions to community development. In 2024, TBC will
continue to implement and enhance policies and initiatives to better meet current sustainability

standards.

Natural Disaster Prevention

In 2024, extreme weather patterns have emerged
across the country, with EI Nino peaking in the first
quarter before transitioning to a neutral phase in
the second quarter. Particularly, the appearance
of Typhoon Yagi has necessitated prioritizing
disaster prevention efforts and ensuring the safe
operation of reservoirs nationwide, including the
Thac Ba Hydropower Plant. The challenge is to
guarantee the absolute safety of the facility and
downstream areas, protect lives and property,
and efficiently utilize water resources for power
generation, production, and daily use.

At the beginning of the year, to ensure the safe
operation of the facility and reservoir while
maintaining electricity production and providing
adequate water supply for domestic and
agricultural needs downstream, the Company
conducted a thorough review and promptly
implemented key measures in accordance with
regulations and operational realities:

* Developed an operational plan ensuring
compliance with all regulations, including the
inter-reservoir operation process for the Red River
basin. Guaranteed sufficient water discharge
during peak periods to support irrigation for the
Winter-Spring crop in the Northern Delta while
maintaining the required flow for downstream
production and daily use. Actively coordinated
with affiliated parties and local authorities in
downstream areas to optimize water usage
efficiency, conserve resources, and enhance
power generation effectiveness.

Disaster Prevention and Rescue:
- Nominate the Company’s Disaster
Prevention and Rescue Command Board,
assigning responsibilities to relevant units and
establishing a rapid response team. Developed
a comprehensive 2024 disaster prevention plan

which included reviewing the previous year’s
performance, assessing facility conditions, and
setting objectives for the new year.

- Conducted a thorough inspection of the facility
before the storm season, covering hydro-
mechanical equipment, communication systems,
grounding, and lightning protection systems. The
results were compiled in a report submitted to
the Ministry of Industry and Trade, the National
Steering Committee for Disaster Prevention,
the Yen Bai Provincial People’s Committee, and
relevant electricity authorities.

- Formulated and approved an emergency
response plan for Thac Ba Hydropower Plant,
along with dam safety reports submitted to
the Ministry of Industry and Trade of Yen Bai
Province and the Industrial Safety Techniques and
Environment Agency.

- Reviewed and updated the emergency response
plan for dam failure scenarios, approved by the
Yen Bai Provincial People’s Committee.

Inspection, Maintenance, and Operation of
Equipment

- The system of equipment in the main production
line and power generating units has been
inspected and maintained according to the planned
schedule. Routine operational inspections have
been enhanced to promptly detect and address
any deficiencies, preventing potential incidents.
- Architectural structures and hydraulic works
have been thoroughly inspected in accordance
with the regulations outlined in the Process for
management and maintenance of hydraulic
structures, and Decrees on dam safety
management. The earth dams show no signs
of landslides, erosion, or scouring. The surface
and groundwater drainage systems function
effectively, ensuring rapid water discharge.

The protective grass layer on the downstream
slope is sufficiently dense to maintain
slope stability during heavy rains, while the
upstream slope’s protective rock layer remains
stable and secure. Drainage at the dam’s
toe has been cleared and is unobstructed.
The concrete structures of the spillway
gallery, spillway surface, piers, and walls
show no damage. Auxiliary structures are
regularly inspected and repaired as needed.
- Spare materials, supplies, and
equipment are always on standby
for immediate use in any situation.
- Entering the storm season, 2024 has been
assessed as a year of unpredictable weather
and climate changes. In particular, the task force
fromministries, provincialleadersofYenBai,and
the management of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company have taken decisive actions,
making precise, effective, and highly strategic
decisions to cope with Typhoon Yagi. Every
decision made has been carefully considered
to ensure the utmost safety for residents in
downstream areas while safeguarding the
integrity of the dam and reservoir system.

Protection of Thac Ba Hydropower
Project

The People’s Committee of Yen Bai Province
has approved the protection plan for the Thac
Ba Hydropower Project. The executive board
continues to work with relevant agencies to
secure government approval for including Thac
Ba Hydropower in the list of critical national
security-related infrastructure projects.

The company maintains and implements the
Coordination Regulation with the Yen Bai
Provincial Police, local authorities of communes

and towns adjacent to the reservoir, to
ensure security, order, reservoir safety,
and flood discharge corridors. Inspection
activities have been intensified, with
violation records established, and offenders
required to restore the original condition
or voluntarily dismantle unauthorized
structures.

Environmental Protection Efforts

In recent years, Thac Ba Hydropower has
consistently played a leading role in electricity
production, contributing to the overall economic
development of the country and the local
area. Additionally, the company places great
emphasis on environmental protection for the
upstream and downstream regions of Thac Ba
Reservoir, including Luc Yen District, Yen Binh
District, and Yen Bai City.

The company strictly complies  with
environmental laws, ensuring proper waste
and hazardous waste management through
collection, classification, handling, and
disposal according to regulations. A properly
designed hazardous waste storage facility
has been constructed. The company also
conducts four environmental monitoring cycles
per year, as required by the Environmental
Impact Assessment Report, and all measured
environmental indicators meet permissible
standards.

Moreover,the companyiscommittedtoensuring
irrigation for tens of thousands of hectares of
crops, planting a significant number of trees,
and fostering a healthy ecological environment
for local communities. Annual inspections
by state agencies and provincial authorities
consistently rate Thac Ba Hydropower highly
for its environmental protection efforts.

The plant’s operations do not generate harmful
gases. Analysis results for CO, SO2, Os, H2S,
and explosive gases show levels well below
the regulatory limits. The air quality within the
plant and surrounding areas remains excellent.
All air and water quality parameters comply
with national environmental standards. The
plant does not use chemical agents that cause
air, water, or soil pollution, and the wastewater
from equipment cooling is negligible compared
to the downstream flow rate. The cooling water
does not negatively impact the environment.
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Oil leakage from lubrication systems is minimal (about 2 liters per month) and is properly treated, ensuring
negligible water contamination. The plant’s power generation activities do not alter water quality, and
noise and vibration levels do not affect the Thac Ba residential area (within a 300-meter radius). The
nearest residential zones, located 1-2 km away from the plant, remain unaffected.

Additionally, the company directly supplies clean water from Thac Ba Reservoir to its employees and
nearby households, further proving the company’s strong commitment to protecting water resources.

o

Assessment of employ

The company has implemented well-structured, comprehensive, and reasonable policies for its employees,
creating a stable and safe working environment with numerous growth opportunities. Employee benefits,
training programs, workplace safety measures, and social welfare policies ensure job security and
contribute to the company’s sustainable development. In 2024, the company introduced initiatives to
enhance employees’ well-being, such as housing support for new employees and organizing vacation
and tourism programs. These efforts have helped boost morale and strengthen team cohesion.

Throughout 2024, the workforce remained stable. The availability of a strong local employee force is an
advantage, allowing the company to expand production when needed. The company places a strong
emphasis on personnel training, particularly in technical and operational fields, with specialized training
programs. A key initiative was the training of personnel for the operation of the Thac Ba 2 Hydropower
Plant, which is crucial for improving workforce quality. Additionally, the company continuously explores
ways to diversify training courses, including soft skills and leadership development programs, to foster

comprehensive professional growth.
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AsS:

Social Welfare Activities

In recent years, alongside strengthening and expanding business operations, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company has consistently prioritized social welfare initiatives. The company’s leadership and
employees consider social responsibility a fundamental duty and a heartfelt commitment to the community.
Social welfare reflects humanistic values and the duty of individuals and organizations to contribute to a
harmonious and civilized society.

TBC acknowledges its role in fostering positive change and delivering public benefits, not only for the
community but also for its employees. The company’s staff and workers recognize their responsibilities
beyond production and business operations, actively engaging in community support efforts. Their spirit of
mutual support is evident through direct contributions of labor and knowledge to social welfare programs.
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In 2024, demonstrating solidarity and support for disaster-stricken communities, TBC took swift action to
aid in the recovery from Typhoon No. 3 (YAGI). On behalf of the company’s employees, General Director
Nguyen Van Quyen contributed a total of 3 billion VND to assist affected areas:

- Yen Binh District, Yen Bai Province: 2 billion VND

- Doan Hung District, Phu Tho Province: 500 million VND

- Yen Son District, Tuyen Quang Province: 500 million VND

With a spirit of solidarity and compassion, TBC aimed to support local authorities and affected residents in
rebuilding their lives. The company promptly transferred the donations, hoping that government agencies
would efficiently implement recovery measures to help residents stabilize their livelihoods as soon as
possible.
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Sustainable Development Indicators Energy Conserva

Energy conservation is implemented through initiatives that enhance energy efficiency, such as:

- Issuing a plan for efficient electricity use.

- Replacing all incandescent and high-pressure lamps with high-efficiency LED lights.

- Raising awareness among employees about energy conservation.

Over the past year, the company has continued its awareness campaigns to enhance energy-saving
consciousness among both customers and employees. The measures implemented include:

- Promoting electricity conservation in the company’s customer service offices and introducing the energy-
saving information website of the power sector: www.tietkiemnangluong.vn on the company’s website.

Energy comsump

Energy/Resource Changes (%)

1 Electricity kWh 1,178,485 1,058,540 11.3% - Advising and supporting large enterprises in adopting safe and effective electricity-saving measures.

- Encouraging employees to strictly follow the company’s electricity-saving policy. Each employee serves
2 Gasoline Liters 12,618 15,547 -18.8% as an advocate, guiding their family, friends, and acquaintances to practice energy conservation

- Promoting the use of energy-efficient electrical equipment, such as replacing high-power incandescent
3  Diesel (DO) Liters 25,342 26,031 -2.6% and LED bulbs with compact energy-saving lamps.

-In 2024, the company will continue to implement measures to reduce power losses in business operations.
4 Paper Kg 862 578 49.1% - Evaluating the causes of high-loss substations and proposing solutions.

- Strengthening the management and operation of the power grid, conducting thermal measurements,
and addressing issues at connections, contact points, and areas of electrical leakage or discharge.

Water consumpti

As a company engaged in electricity production, business, and distribution, Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company primarily consumes water for production purposes. The company’s water supply comes Compliance with 1
from the Chay River basin. The company does not use recycled water and does not implement water

recycling processes. The company is highly aware of environmental protection issues and consistently ensures compliance

with environmental laws, standards, and regulations. The company has never been penalized for violating
environmental laws.

Strict adherence to environmental laws is maintained within the company. It effectively manages waste
and hazardous waste, ensuring proper collection, classification, management, and disposal in accordance
with regulations. The company has also built a compliant hazardous waste storage facility. Additionally, it
conducts four environmental monitoring assessments annually as required by the Environmental Impact
Assessment Report. The results of environmental measurements and analyses by TBC remain within the
permissible standards.
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Policies relatec

The company’s leadership is committed to employee
training and workforce development. It collaborates
with various departments to optimize labor allocation,
ensuring employees’ full potential is utilized for maximum
productivity. Additionally, the management regularly
reviews and enhances specific, measurable criteria for
evaluating employee performance.

Compensation and Benefits Policy

The company provides competitive salary, bonus, and
welfare policies to encourage employees, especially
experienced and specialized workers, to commit to
long-term employment. Newly hired employees receive
housing support for the first five years.

Recruitment Policy

The company prioritizes human resources as a core factor
and a top goal. Annually, based on job requirements,
business plans, and short-term and long-term objectives,
the company develops recruitment plans to ensure a
stable workforce.

Training and Development Policy

With 54 years of experience in managing and operating
hydropower plants, the company highly values training,
employee development, and continuous learning.
Training programs focus on comprehensive human
development, encouraging employees to self-study and
enhance their qualifications.

Every year, the company combines in-house training
with external training programs, sending employees for
professional and technical courses both domestically
and internationally. In addition to training for business
operations, the company also offers management,
operation, and maintenance training services for power
plants in the Northern and Central regions of Vietnam.

Working policy

The company fully complies with labor laws, ensuring
all employee benefits and entitlements are provided
according to legal regulations, collective Ilabor
agreements, and industry-specific requirements in the
electricity sector.
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Environmental Goals, Targets, and
Programs for 2025

IMPLEMEN- RESPON
OBJECTIVES TARGETS PROGRAMS TATION _SIBILITY
1. Maintain Ensure -Upgrade and
. compliance improve the lighting,
and sustain . . .
. with standards ventilation, and air
environmental on lightin conditioning systems
standards in the ghting, g sy Entire
temperature, at workstations. 2025
workplace for L Company
ventilation, - Replace and
employees and . . .
. noise, and upgrade equipment in
surrounding areas of e .
humidity as the power generation
the company. .
required. process.
2. Reduce self- - Self- .
. . - Implement solutions
consumption of consumption for energv-savin Entire
electricity and rate: < 0.29% gy 9: 2025
o ] - Upgrade and Company
minimize energy - Energy loss: < improve equibment
loss. 0.9% P quip '
- Ensure proper
100% of waste is classm_catlon,
collection, and storage
3. Control all types  sorted, collected, . ;
of waste in designated
of waste generated and stored .
. . . areas. . Entire
during production according to . Ongoing
. , - Identify and Company
and business the company’s .
- . collaborate with
activities. regulations
. capable hazardous
before disposal.
waste treatment
providers.
o .
4. Manage and 100% of tree? in
maintain green the company’s s : Entire
spaces within the premises are - The Administrative Ongoing Compan
P . managed and ~ @nd Human pany
company premises. %o Resources
Department is
responsible for
. managing and
5. Promote 100% of maintaining greenery.
environmental training and environmental Ongoing Company

protection within the
company.

information on
environmental
protection..

management within
their respective units.

Conclusion

“Today, sustainable development is a journey that every Thac Ba
Hydropower employee embarks on together. This journey calls for a
fresh mindset, a spirit of innovation, and a commitment to creating
meaningful value for the community— Unleashing the source of
hydropower - Lighting up the future.”
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated
under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate No.
5200240495 issued by the Yen Bai Department of Planning and Investment on 31 March 2006. The
Company subsequently received amended Enterprise Registration Certificates, with 8t amendment
dated 1 June 2023 as the latest.

The current principal activities of the Company are to produce and trade of electric power, provide
repairment, maintenance, and renovation services for equipment of hydropower plants.

The Company (including its Head Office and an independently accounting Branch, Technical Services
Center) is located at Residential Group 1, Thac Ba town, Yen Binh district, Yen Bai province, Vietnam.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Nguyen Quang Quyen Chairman

Mr Nguyen Van Quyen Member

Mr Tran Ky Hai Member appointed on 20 September 2024
Mr Ho Van Trung Member resigned on 20 September 2024
Mr Le Tuan Hai Member

Mr Nguyen Van Da Independence Member

BOARD OF SUPERVISION
Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are:

Ms Nguyen Thi Huynh Phuong Head of Board of Supervision

Ms Tran Nguyen Khanh Linh Member
Ms Lai Le Huong Member
MANAGEMENT

Member of the Management during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Nguyen Van Quyen General Director

Mr Nguyen Manh Cuong Deputy General Director
Mr Nguyen Thanh Hai Deputy General Director
Mr Bui Hoang Deputy General Director

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Mr. Nguyen
Van Quyen - General Director.

AUDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company (‘the Company”) is pleased to present
this report and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiary and of the
consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing those
consolidated financial statements, management is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

» prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Company and subsidiary will continue its business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiary
and for ensuring that the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and its subsidiary and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company and its
subsidiary as at 31 December 2024 and of the consolidated results of its operations and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the

3 n and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Q“ i O 49
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Nguye’nr\/an Quyen
General Director

Yen Bai, Vietnam

11 March 2025



Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited Tel: +84 28 3824 5252
20th Floor, Bitexco Financial Tower Fax: +84 28 3824 5250
2 Hai Trieu Street, District 1 ey.com

Building a better Ho Chi Minh City, S.R. of Vietnam

working world

Reference: 12828659/68426303-HN
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Shareholders of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Thac Ba Hydropower Joint
Stock Company (“the Company”) and its subsidiary as prepared on 11 March 2025 and set out on pages
5 to 48, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the same financial year and the notes
thereto.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Viethamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the Company and its subsidiary's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiary's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair review, in all material respects,
of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the consolidated
results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory
requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Le Hong Van

Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate No. 3835-2021-004-1 Certificate No. 4432-2023-004-1
Hanoi, Vietnam

11 March 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2024

BO1-DN/HN

Currency: VND

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 31 December 2024

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

BO1-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Code | ASSETS Notes Ending balance | Beginning balance
100 A. CURRENT ASSETS 235,477,045,312 373,682,120,483
110 I. Cash and cash equivalents 4 94,333,448,278 128,305,931,825
111 1. Cash 21,783,448,278 15,205,931,825
112 2. Cash equivalents 72,550,000,000 113,100,000,000
120 ll. Short-term investments 21,994,543,500 10,000,000,000
121 1. Held-for-trading securities 51 13,694,543,500 -
123 2. Held-to-maturity investments | 5.2 8,300,000,000 10,000,000,000
130 lll. Current accounts receivable 110,056,183,822 219,430,436,992
131 1. Short-term trade receivables 6.1 101,411,938,598 159,929,636,566
132 2. Short-term advances to

suppliers 6.2 7,225,361,261 53,778,106,532
135 3. Short-term loan receivables 24 - 5,000,000,000
136 4. Other short-term receivables 4,537,073,523 3,769,905,984
137 5. Provision for short-term

doubtful receivables (3,118,189,560) (3,047,212,090)
140 IV. Inventories 7 5,340,478,768 5,527,795,086
141 1. Inventories 5,340,478,768 5,527,795,086
150 V. Other current assets 3,752,390,944 10,417,956,580
151 1. Short-term prepaid

expenses 229,429,205 467,351,428
152 2. Deductible value-added tax 14 3,459,481,174 -
153 3. Tax and other receivables

from the State 14 63,480,565 9,950,605,152

5

Code | ASSETS Notes Ending balance Beginning balance
200 B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,284,340,123,104 | 1,162,230,883,157
210 I. Long-term receivables 10,000,000,000 -
215 1. Long-term loan

receivables 8 10,000,000,000 -
220 Il. Fixed assets 833,697,956,723 888,743,227,485
221 1. Tangible fixed assets 9 818,042,376,668 872,239,979,251
222 Cost 2,608,043,190,980 | 2,596,863,000,841
223 Accumulated depreciation (1,790,000,814,312) | (1,724,623,021,590)
227 2. Intangible fixed assets 10 15,655,580,055 16,503,248,234
228 Cost 23,192,381,858 23,192,381,858
229 Accumulated amortisation (7,536,801,803) (6,689,133,624)
240 Il. Long-term assets in

progress 197,737,934,308 11,552,327,710

242 1. Construction in progress 11 197,737,934,308 11,5652,327,710
250 Ifl. Long-term investments 160,405,700,690 163,470,223,812
252 1. Investment in associate 53 99,895,400,690 82,301,223,812
253 2. Investments in other

entities 54 60,510,300,000 81,169,000,000
260 IV. Other long-term assets 82,498,531,383 98,465,104,150
261 1. Long-term prepaid

expenses 2,322,888,320 1,813,347,882
262 2. Deferred tax assets 23.3 974,163,276 1,063,763,421
269 3. Goodwill 12 79,201,479,787 95,587,992,847
270 TOTAL ASSETS 1,519,817,168,416 | 1,535,913,003,640




Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

as at 31 December 2024

BO1-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Code | ASSETS

Notes

Ending balance

Beginning balance

300 | C. LIABILITIES

330 | Il. Non-current liabilities

411 1. Share capital

411a - Ordinary shares with
voting rights

418 2. Investment and

development fund

421 3. Undistributed earnings

421a - Undistributed earnings
by the end of prior year

421b - Undistributed earnings
of current year

429 4. Non-controlling interests

310 | I Current liabilities
311 1. Short-term trade payables 13
312 2. Short-term advances from
customers 24
313 3. Statutory obligations 14
314 4. Payables to employees
315 5. Short-term accrued
expenses
319 6. Short-term other payables 15
320 7. Short-term loans 16
322 8. Bonus and welfare fund 17

336 1. Long-term unearned

revenues
338 2. lLong-term loans 16
400 | D. OWNERS’ EQUITY 18
410 | I Owners’ equity

154,979,014,918
141,801,357,392
27,013,867,172
7,468,808,443
7,463,170,454
1,323,090,443
52,852,813,815
45,420,833,333
258,773,732
13,177,657,526

3,498,490,859
9,679,166,667

1,364,838,153,498

1,364,838,153,498
635,000,000,000

635,000,000,000

302,057,614,951
139,007,922,509

56,230,378,364

82,777,544,145
288,772,616,038

196,804,161,108

151,804,161,108
4,288,917,972

3,596,854,522
1,809,284,895
12,198,438,450
1,330,988,785
67,779,208,696
60,000,000,000
800,467,788

45,000,000,000

45,000,000,000
1,339,108,842,532

1,339,108,842,532
635,000,000,000

635,000,000,000

302,057,614,951
123,485,083,708

61,279,057,594

62,206,026,114
278,566,143,873

OWNERS’ EQUITY

440 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

1,519,817,168,416

1,535,913,003,640
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Yen Bai, Vietnam
11 March 2025

Nguyen Trung Hieu
Preparer

Le Hong Minh
Chief Accountant

n Van Quyen
General Director
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

BO2-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Previous year
Code | ITEMS Notes Current year (restated)
01 1. Revenue from sale of
electricity, sale of goods and
rendering of services 19.1 538,668,435,744 430,943,699,541
02 2. Deductions 19.1 - -
10 3. Net revenue from sale of
electricity, sale of goods and
rendering of services 19.1 538,668,435,744 430,943,699,541
11 | 4. Cost of electricity sold, goods
sold and services rendered 20 (210,579,398,288) | (173,708,376,377)
20 | 5. Gross profit from sale of
electricity, sale of goods and
rendering of services 328,089,037,456 257,235,323,164
21 6. Finance income 19.2 12,288,831,724 11,271,419,348
22 | 7. Finance expenses (5,203,793,931) (9,372,510,464)
23 - In which: Interest expenses (5,183,835,617) (9,372,328,767)
24 8. Shares of loss of associate 5.3 (1,614,313,122) (1,941,715,576)
26 9. General and administrative
expenses 21 (64,375,910,212) | (60,306,108,436)
30 | 10. Opérating profit 269,183,851,915 196,886,408,036
31 11. Other income 1,534,217,713 1,310,536,873
32 12. Other expenses (744,184,439) (1,223,301,443)
40 | 13. Other profit 790,033,274 87,235,430
50 14. Accounting profit before tax 269,973,885,189 196,973,643,466




Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

BO2-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Previous year
Code | ITEMS Notes Current year (restated)
51 15. Current corporate income tax
expense 23.1 (41,263,278,778) | (29,423,302,788)
52 16. Deferred tax (expense)/income 23.3 (89,600,145) 1,063,763,421
60 17. Net profit after corporate
income tax 228,621,006,266 168,614,104,099
61 18. Net profit after tax attributable
to shareholders of the parent 178,027,544,145 125,706,026,114
62 19. Net profit after tax attributable
to non-controlling interests 50,593,462,121 42,908,077,985
70 | 20. Basic earnings per share 25 2,804 1,920
71 21. Diluted earnings per share 25 2,804 1,920

Yen Bai, Vietham
11 March 2025

Nguyen Trung Hieu
Preparer

Le Hong Minh

Chief Accountant

General Director

LATNA Y

NN Y 4

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

BO3-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Code | ITEMS Notes Current year Previous year
I. CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 Profit before tax 269,973,885,189 | 196,973,643,466
Adjustments for:
02 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
and investment properties and
amortisation of intangible fixed
assets (including amortisation of
goodwill) 22 83,445,372,469 87,307,270,163
03 Provisions 70,977,470 1,413,870,092
04 Foreign exchange gains arisen from
revaluation of monetary accounts
denominated in foreign currency (1,046,980,647) -
05 Profits from investing activities (6,394,886,811) (9,665,660,372)
06 Interest expenses 5,183,835,617 9,372,328,767
08 Operating profit before changes in
working capital 351,232,203,287 | 285,401,452,116
09 Decrease/(increase) in receivables 70,377,376,636 | (28,240,732,468)
10 Increase in inventories {1,712,641,165) (1,456,353,337)
11 Increase/(decrease) in payables 6,793,476,423 (9,573,415,703)
12 (Increase)/decrease in prepaid
expenses (271,618,215) 1,892,533,510
13 Decrease in held-for-trading
securities 6,964,156,500 . -
14 Interest paid (5,780,937,865) (9,970,685,261)
15 Corporate income tax paid 14 (39,085,009,620) | (45,984,387,642)
17 Other cash outflows for operating
activities 17 (4,513,717,400) (3,607,131,000)
20 Net cash flows from operating
activities 384,003,288,581 | 188,461,280,215
. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
21 Purchase and construction of fixed
assets and other long-term assets (139,351,898,888) | (81,917,465,481)
22 Proceeds from disposals of fixed
assets and other long-term assets 914,152,313 336,088,442
23 Loans to other entities and
payments for purchase of debt
instruments of other entities (71,800,000,000) | (37,020,000,000)
24 Collections from borrowers and
proceeds from sale of debt
instruments of other entities 68,500,000,000 134,520,000,000
25 Payments for investments in other
entities (19,208,490,000) -
27 Interest and dividends received 7.784,580,847 11,119,877,648
30 Net cash flows (used in)/from

investing activities

(153,161,655,728)

27,038,500,609
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

BO3-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Code | ITEMS Notes Current year

Previous year

Hi. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
33 Drawdown of borrowings 16 10,100,000,000
34 Repayment of borrowings 16 (60,000,000,000)
36 Dividends paid (214,914,116,400)

40 Net cash flows used in financing
activities (264,814,116,400)

50 Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents for the year (33,972,483,547)
60 Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 128,305,931,825
70 Cash and cash equivalents at the end

of the year 4 94,333,448,278

(60,000,000,000)
(136,306,256,310)

(196,306,256,310)
19,193,524,514
109,112,407,311

128,305,931,825

(o | THUY DIEI
| l\TH . KN |
\*\THAC BA/: //

Yen Bai, Vietnam
11 March 2025

Nguyen Trung Hieu Le Hong Minh

<
. X2 B8/NH
Preparer Chief Accountant =

NguyeA Van Quyen
ral Director
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company BO9-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company (‘the Company”) is a joint stock company
incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Business Registration
Certificate No. 5200240495 issued by the Yen Bai Department of Planning and Investment
on 31 March 2006. The Company subsequently received amended Enterprise Registration
Certificates, with 8" amendment dated 1 June 2023 as the latest.

The current principal activities of the Company are to produce and trade of electric power,
provide repairment, maintenance, and renovation services for equipment of hydropower
plants.

The Company’s normal course of business cycle is 12 months starting from 1 January and
ending on 31 December.

The Company (including its Head Office and an independently accounting Branch, Technical
Services Center) is located at Residential Group 1, Thac Ba town, Yen Binh district, Yen Bai
province, Vietnam.

The number of the Company and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2024 is 162 employees
(31 December 2023: 161 people).

Corporate structure
As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Company has an independent

accounting branch, Technical Services Center. As of this date, the Company has a
subsidiary and an associate company, with details as follows:

Percentage of Voting Principal
Subsidiary ownership rights Location activities
Muong Hum 50,94% 50,94% Ban Xeo 1 hamlet, Production and
Hydropower Joint Ban Xeo commune, trading of
Stock Company Bat Xat district, Lao electric power
Cai province,
Vietnam
Percentage of Voting Principal
Associate ownership rights Location activities
Thac Ba 2 49,00% 49,00%  Residential Group 1, Investment and
Hydropower Thac Ba town, Yen development of
Investment Joint Binh district, Yen Bai  the Thac Ba 2
Stock Company province, Vietnam Hydropower
Plant project
12



Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2.1

2.2

23

24

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Accounting standards and system

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary expressed in
Vietnam dong (“VND”"), are prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of Finance as per:

» Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 1);

» Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Viethamese Accounting Standards (Series 2);

» Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 3);

» Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the lIssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 4); and

» Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, including their utilisation
are not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam’s accounting principles,
procedures and practices and furthermore are not intended to present the consolidated
financial position and the consolidated results of operations and the consolidated cash flows
in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other
than Vietnam.

Applied accounting documentation system

The Company and its subsidiary’s applied accounting documentation system is the General
Journal.

Fiscal year

The Company and its subsidiary’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also the Company and
its subsidiary’s accounting currency which is also the Company’s accounting currency.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2.5

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

As presented in Note 1, as at 31 December 2024, the Company has an independent
accounting branch, Technical Services Center and a subsidiary, Muong Hum Hydropower
Joint Stock Company.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company (are
prepared based on the aggregation of the financial statements of the Company's Head Office
and the Branch) and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Company and its subsidiary obtains control and continued to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

The financial statements of a subsidiary is prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies.

Allintra-company balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains or losses result from
intra-company transactions are eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the
Company are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Impact of change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
recorded in undistributed earnings.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of not more than three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at their historical costs. The cost of inventories comprises costs of
purchase, costs of conversion (including raw materials, direct labour cost, other directly
related cost, manufacturing general overheads allocated based on the normal operating
capacity) incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

In case the net realizable value is lower than the original price, it must be calculated according
to the net realizable value.

Net realisable value (“NRV”) represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

The Company and its subsidiary’s perpetual method is used to record inventories, which are
valued as follows:

Raw materials, tools - cost of purchase on a weighted average basis

Work-in progress - cost of raw materials and direct labor plus related
manufacturing overhead costs

14



Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories (continued)
Provision for obsolete inventories

An inventory provision is made for the estimated loss arising due to the impairment of value
(through diminution, damage, obsolescence, etc.) of raw materials, finished goods, and other
inventories owned by the Company and its subsidiary, based on appropriate evidence of
impairment available at the balance sheet date.

Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded into the cost of goods sold
account in the consolidated income statement. When inventories are expired, obsolescence,
damage or become useless, the difference between the provision previously made and the
historical cost of inventories are included in the consolidated income statement.

Receivables

Receivables are presented in the consolidated balance sheet at the carrying amounts due
from customers and other debtors, after provision for doubtful debts.

The provision for doubtful debts represents amounts of outstanding receivables at the balance
sheet date which are doubtful of being recovered. Increases or decreases to the provision
balance are recorded as general and administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement. When bad debts are determined as unrecoverable and accountant writes off those
bad debts, the differences between the provision for doubtful receivables previously made
and historical cost of receivables are included in the consolidated income statement.

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the tangible fixed asset to working condition for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of
the assets and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the
consolidated income statement.

Leased assets

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at inception date and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement
Where the Company and its subsidiary are the lessees

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statermment on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor
For lease of assets under an operating lease, lease income is recognised in the consolidated

income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

B09-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.6

3.7

3.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of preparing the intangible fixed asset for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements are added to the carrying amount of the assets and
other expenditures are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.

When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the
consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

The advance payment for land rental, of which the land lease contracts have effectiveness
prior to 2003 and Land use right certificate being issued, are recorded as intangible fixed asset
according to Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 25 April 2013
guiding the management, use and depreciation of fixed assets (“Circular 45”).

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortisation of intangible fixed assets are calculated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Buiidings and structures 10 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20years
Means of transportation 9-15years
Office equipment 3 -10years
Other fixed assets 10 years
Land use rights 50 years
Computer software 3 —5years

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of acquiring new assets that have not yet been
fully installed or the costs of construction that have not yet been fully completed. Construction
in progress is stated at cost, which includes all necessary costs to construct, repair, renovate,
expand, or re-equip the projects with technologies, such as construction costs, tools and
equipment costs, project management costs, construction consulting costs, and borrowing
costs that are eligible for capitalization.

Construction in progress will be transferred to the appropriéte fixed asset account when these
assets are fully installed or the construction project is fully completed, and depreciation of
these assets will commence when they are ready for their intended use.

Construction costs are recognized as expenses when such costs do not meet the conditions
to be recognized as fixed assets.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company B09-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company and its subsidiary incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs are recorded as expense during the year in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as explained in the following paragraph.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the
consolidated balance sheet and amortised over the period for which the amounts are paid or
the period in which economic benefits are generated in relation to these expenses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of a business
combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination. Identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at fair values at the date of business
combination.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of
the cost the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If the cost of a business
combination is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation. Goodwill is amortised over
10-year period on a straight-line basis. The parent company conducts the periodical review
for impairment of goodwill of investment in subsidiaries. If there are indicators of impairment
loss incurred is higher than the yearly allocated amount of goodwill on the straight-line basis,
the higher amount will be recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Investments
Investments in associates

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence that is
neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The Group generally deems they have significant
influence if they have over 20% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill
arising on acquisition of the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
Goodwill is not amortised and subject to annual review for impairment.

The share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) of the associate is presented on face of the
consolidated income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. Dividend/profit sharing received or receivable from
associates reduces the carrying amount of the investment.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.12

3.13

3.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments {continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period and
use the same accounting policies as the Company and its subsidiary. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company and
its subsidiary.

Held-for-trading security and investments in other entities
Held-for-trading security and investments in other entities are stated at their acquisition costs.
Provision for diminution in value of investments

Provision for diminution in value of the investment is made when there are reliable evidences
of the diminution in value of those investments at the balance sheet date. Increases or
decreases to the provision balance are recorded as finance expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at their acquisition costs. After initial recognition, held-
to-maturity investments are measured at recoverable amount. Any impairment loss incurred
is recognised as finance expenses in the consolidated income statements and deducted
against the value of such investments.

Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Company and its subsidiary.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Company and its subsidiary’s reporting currency of
VND are recorded at the actual transaction exchange rates at transaction dates which are
determined as follows:

» Transactions resulting in liabilities are recorded at the selling exchange rates of the
commercial banks designated for payment;

» Capital contributions are recorded at the buying exchange rates of the commercial banks
designated for capital contribution; and

» Payments for assets or expenses without liabilities initially being recognised is recorded
at the buying exchange rates of the commercial banks that process these payments.

At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the actual transaction exchange rates at the balance sheet dates which are determined as
follows:

» Monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commercial bank where
the Company and its subsidiary conducts transactions regularly.

All foreign exchange differences incurred are taken to the consolidated income statement.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company B09-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.15

3.16

3.17

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are recognised at issuance price less incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of shares, net of tax effects. Such costs are recognised as a deduction from share
premium.

Appropriation of net profits

Net profit after tax is available for appropriation to shareholders after approval by the
appropriate level of authority/in the annual general meeting, and after making appropriation
to reserve funds in accordance with the Company and its subsidiary’s Charter and Vietnam’s
regulatory requirements.

The Company and its subsidiary maintains the following reserve funds which are appropriated
from the Company and its subsidiary’s net profit as proposed by the Board of Directors and
subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Investment and development fund

This fund is set aside for use in the Company’s expansion of its operation or of in-depth
investment.

Bonus and welfare fund

This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouraging, common
benefits and improvement of the employees’ benefits, and presented as a liability on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and its subsidiary and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding trade
discount, rebate and sales return. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognised:

Sale of electricity power

Electricity revenue is determined based on the Power Purchase Agreements signed by the
Company and its subsidiary with Vietnam Electricity and the related contract appendices
(including payments related to water resource tax, forest environment fees, and water
resource exploitation rights fees).

Rendering of services

Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised by reference
to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is measured based on the amount of services
rendered and then confirmed by the client.

Where the contract outcome cannot be reliably measured, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of the expenses recognised which are recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.17

3.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually upon the delivery of the goods.

Interest income:

Interest is recognized on an accrual basis based on the time and actual interest rate for each
period.

Dividend and Profit Distribution income:

Dividend and profit distribution income are recognized when Company is entitled to receive
dividends or when the Company are entitled to receive profits from its capital contributions.

Taxation
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the balance sheet date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when
it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also
dealt with in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
for the Company and its subsidiary to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the Company and its subsidiary intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction which at the time of the related transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

» in respect of taxable temporarily differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures where timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.18

3.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward
unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

# where the deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary difference which arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of the related
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

» in respect of deductible temporarily differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probabie that future taxable profit wili allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in the equity account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the
Company and its subsidiary to off-set current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on:

» either the same taxable entity; or

» when the Company and its subsidiary intends either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit/(loss) after tax for the
year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (after adjusting for the bonus and
welfare fund) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.20

3.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Segment information

The Company and its subsidiary’s principal activities are electricity production and trading and
these activities are taking place within Vietnam. Therefore, the Company and its subsidiary’s
risks and returns are not impacted by the Company and its subsidiary’s products that the
Company and its subsidiary is manufacturing or the locations where the Company and its
subsidiary is trading. As a result, the Company and its subsidiary’s management is of the view
that there is only one segment for business and geography and therefore presentation of
segmental information is not required.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Company and its subsidiary if one party
has the ability to, directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or when the Company and
its subsidiary and other party are under common control or under common significant
influence. Related parties can be enterprises or individuals, including close members of their
families.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Currency: VND
Ending balance Beginning balance

164,676,674 377,052,900
Cash in banks 21,618,771,604 14,828,878,925
Other cash and cash equivalents (*) 72,550,000,000 113,100,000,000

TOTAL 94,333,448,278  128,305,931,825

Cash on hand

(*) Cash equivalents as at 31 December 2024 represent deposits in VND at commercial
banks and EVN Finance Joint Stock Company, with term of less than 3 months and earn
interest at the rates ranging from 0.5% per annum to 4.75% per annum (as at 31
December 2023: term of less than 3 months and earn interest at the rates ranging from
0.5% per annum to 4.3% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

5.1

52

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Held-for-trading securities

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cost Fair value Provision Cost Fair  Provision
value

Shares of Hai
Phong Thermail
Power Joint
Stock Company 13,694,543,500 16,247,550,000 - - - -
TOTAL 13,694,543,500 16,247,550,000 - - - -

Held-for-trading securities represent 1,259,500 shares of Hai Phong Thermal Power Joint
Stock Company which were reclassified from Investments in other entities to Held-for-trading
securities according to Resolution No. 1009/NQ-TDTB-HPQT dated 10 June 2024 and
Resolution No. 1221/NQ-TDTB-HPQT dated 28 June 2024 approved by the Company's
Board of Directors.

The shares of this company are traded on the UPCOM market a closing trading price on the
last trading day of December 2024 being VND 12,900 per share (December 2023: VND
14,000 per share).

Held-to-maturity investments

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

Cost  Carrying value Cost  Carrying value
Term deposits 8,300,000,000 8,300,000,000 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
TOTAL 8,300,000,000 8,300,000,000 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

Term deposits as at 31 December 2024 represent deposits in VND at EVN Finance Joint
Stock Company with term of 101 days and earn interest of 4.5% per annum (as at 31
December 2023. deposits at commercial bank with term of 6 months and earn interest of
5.20% per annum).
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5.3

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)
Investment in associate

Currency: VND
Thac Ba 2 Investment

Hydropower Joint Stock
Company

Cost of investment:
Beginning balance 84,652,890,000

19,208,490,000
103,861,380,000

- Increase (*)

Ending balance

Accumulated share in post-acquisition loss of the
associate:

Beginning balance
- Share in post-acquisition loss of the associates
for the year (1,614,313,122)

(3.965,979,310)

(2,351,666,188)

Ending balance

Net carrying amount:
82,301,223,812

99,895,400,690

Beginning balance

Ending balance

(*) According to Resolution No. 66/NQ-DHBPCD dated 24 January 2024, of the General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment Joint Stock Company, the
General Meeting of Shareholders of Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment Joint Stock
Company approved the plan to offer shares to existing shareholders to increase the
company's charter capital. Accordingly, in 2024, the Company purchased an additional
1,920,849 shares of Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment Joint Stock Company with total
amount of VND 19,208,490,000. As at 31 December 2024, this transaction has been
completed. The Company's interest and voting rights in Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment
Joint Stock Company remain unchanged after this transaction.
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Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

10.

1.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost:
Beginning balance

Ending balance

in which:
Fully amortised

Accumulated amortisation:

Beginning balance
- Amortisation for the year

Ending balance

Net carrying amount:
Beginning balance

Ending balance

In which:
Collateral

B09-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Computer
Land use rights software Total
20,558,322,400 2,634,059,458 23,192,381,858
20,558,322,400 2,634,059,458  23,192,381,858
- 456,500,000 456,500,000

5,571,800,974
411,153,216

1,117,332,650
436,514,963

6,689,133,624
847,668,179

5,982,954,190

1,553,847,613

7,536,801,803

14,986,521,426

1,516,726,808

16,503,248,234

14,575,368,210

1,080,211,845

15,655,580,055

14,575,368,210

14,575,368,210

The entire land use rights of the Company with net carrying amount as at 31 December 2024
of VND 14,575,368,210 is used as collateral for the loan as presented in Note 16.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Project for upgrading equipment of the generator
units - Thac Ba Hydropower Plant Project
Machinery and equipment not yet installed and
tested (belonging to the Project for upgrading
equipment of the generator units - Thac Ba
Hydropower Plant) _

Project for upgrading electrical equipment - Thac
Ba Hydropower Plant Project

Consulting, surveying, and preparing planning
report costs for the Hydropower Plant expansion
project (Muong Hum)

Other projects

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

100,942,336,738

91,863,810,287

240,741,741

1,847,050,542
2,843,995,000

6,311,024,101

2,507,802,791

1,847,050,542
886,450,276

TOTAL

197,737,934,308

11,552,327,710
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12, GOODWILL

Cost:
Beginning and ending balance

Accumulated amortisation:

Beginning balance
- Amortisation for the year

Ending balance

Net carrying amount:
Beginning balance

Ending balance

13. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

BO9-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Muong Hum

Hydropower Joint

1

Stock Company

63,865,130,597

68,277,137,750
16,386,513,060

84,663,650,810

95,5687,992,847

79,201,479,787

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

ANDRITZ China Ltd.

ENTEC Energy Technology Joint Stock Company

Others
TOTAL

14, STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS

Receivables

Value added tax
Personal income tax
Natural resources tax

Other taxes

TOTAL

Payables

Corporate income tax
Value added tax
Personal income tax
Natural resource tax
Water resources
exploitation rights fee
Other taxes

TOTAL

Beginning
balance

3,887,400,127

18,872,719,799 -
4,739,619,826 -
3,401,527 547 4,288,917,972
27,013,867,172 4,288,917,972
Currency: VND

Receivable  Net-off during the
for the year year Ending balance

4,384,817,172

(4,812,736,125)

3,459,481,174

647,161,843 63,480,565 (647,161,843) 63,480,565

5,357,652,229 - (5,357,652,229) -

58,390,953 - (568,390,953) -

9,950,605,152 4,448,297,737  (10,875,941,150) 3,522,961,739
Beginning  Payable forthe = Payment, net-off

balance year  made in the year Ending balance

1,693,978,087 41,263,278,778  (39,085,009,620) 3,872,247,245

- 25,329,958,102  (24,736,327,549) 593,630,553

- 3,386,470,199 (2,708,772,480) 677,697,719

115,306,808 51,123,018,591  (49,328,953,242) 1,909,372,157

- 6,606,310,769 (6,190,450,000) 415,860,769

- 1,499,566,251 (1,499,566,251) -

1,809,284,895 129,208,602,690 (123,549,079,142) 7,468,808,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

SHORT-TERM OTHER PAYABLES

15.

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

44,415,140,900

57,415,168,000

Dividends payable to related parties (Note 24)
Dividends payable to others

Forest environment fee

Others

6,276,923,749

3,254,529,749
4,726,927,332

3,376,916,352
710,200,595
67,779,208,696

456,215,834
52,852,813,815

TOTAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
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Total

B0O9-DN/HN
Currency: VND
1,374,308,944,743
168,614,104,099
(4,000,000,000)
(115,196,184,000)
(84,618,022,310)
1,339,108,842,532
1,339,108,842,532
228,621,006,266
(3,000,000,000)
(1,000,000,000)
(86,188,784,300)
(112,702,911,000)
1,364,838,153,498

interest

Non-controlling
276,722,272,198
42,908,077,985
(19,946,184,000)
(21,118,022,310)
278,566,143,873
278,566,143,873
50,593,462,121
(245,294,656)
(22,688,784,300)
(17,452,911,000)
288,772,616,038

eamings

Undistributed
462,586,672,545
125,706,026,114

(4,000,000,000)
(302,057,614,951)
(95,250,000,000)
(63,500,000,000)
123,485,083,708
123,485,083,708
178,027,544,145
(3,000,000,000)
(754,705,344)
(63,500,000,000)
(95,250,000,000)
139,007,922,509

Investment and
development fund
302,057,614,951
302,057,614,951
302,057,614,951
302,057,614,951

35

Contributed
charter capital
635,000,000,000
635,000,000,000
635,000,000,000
635,000,000,000

investment and development fund
- Dividends declared from 2022 profit

- Advance dividends from 2023 profit

bonus fund (Note 17) (*)
- Dividends declared from 2023 profit (*)

- Advance dividends from 2024 profit (**)

fund (Note 17) (*)
- Appropriation to Executive Boards'

fund
- Transfer undistributed earnings to

Increase and decrease in owners’ equity
- Appropriation to bonus and welfare
- Appropriation to bonus and welfare

OWNERS' EQUITY
Previous year
Beginning balance

- Net profit for the year
Ending balance
Beginning balance

- Net profit for the year
Ending balance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Current year

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

18.
18.1

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

18. OWNERS’ EQUITY (continued)
18.1  Increase and decrease in owners’ equity (continued)

(*) The Company and its subsidiary made appropriation to the reward and welfare fund, the
Executive Boards’ bonus fund, and distributed dividends in cash from 2023 profit
according to Resolution No. 506/NQ-TDTB-DHDCD dated 27 March 2024 of 2024
Shareholder’'s Annual General Meeting (“Resolution No. 506/NQ-TDTB-DHBCP”) and
Resolution No. 119/NQ-MHP-DHDCD dated 26 March 2024 of 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of the Company
(“Resolution No. 119/NQ-MHP-DHDCD").

(**) Based on the approved plan for dividend distribution from 2024 profit in Resolution No.
506/NQ-TDTB-DHDCD of 2024 Shareholder's Annual General Meeting and Resolutions
No. 1658/NQ-TBTB-HPQT dated 22 August 2024 and No. 2621/NQ-TPTB-HDQT dated
11 December 2024 of the Company’s Board of Directors, the Company made an advance
payment of dividends from 2024 profit.

Based on the approved plan for dividend distribution from 2024 profit in Resolution No.
119/NQ-MHP-DHDCD dated 26 March 2024 of 2024 Shareholder's Annual General Meeting
and Resolutions No. 333/NQ-MHP-HPQT dated 5 September 2024 and No. 475/NQ-MHP-
HBQT dated 23 December 2024 of Board of Directors of Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock
Company, Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company made an advance payment of
dividends from 2024 profit.

18.2  Contributed charter capital

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance
Preference Preference
Total Ordinary shares shares Total  Ordinary shares shares
Share
capital 635,000,000,000 635,000,000,000 - 635,000,000,000 635,000,000,000 -
TOTAL 635,000,000,000 635,000,000,000 - 635,000,000,000 635,000,000,000 -

The details of the share capital as of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are as

follows:
Ending balance Beginning balance

Share capial % of Share capial % of
Share holder (VND)  ownership (VND)  ownership
R.E.E Energy Company
Limited 383,651,680,000 60.42% 383,651,680,000 60.42%
Power Generation Joint
Stock Corporation 3 190,500,000,000 30.00% 190,500,000,000 30.00%
Other shareholders 60,848,320,000 9.58% 60,848,320,000 9.58%
TOTAL 635,000,000,000 100% 635,000,000,000 100%

18.3  Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends, profits

Currency: VND

Current year Previous year

Contributed capital
Beginning and ending balance 635,000,000,000 635,000,000,000
Dividends declared 158,750,000,000 158,750,000,000
Dividends paid 190,480,041,000 95,242,050,000
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18. OWNERS’ EQUITY (continued)

18.4 Dividends

Dividends declared during the year
Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends by cash for 2022: VND 1,500 per

Current year

18.5

share

Advance dividends for 2023: VND 1,000 per

share

Dividends by cash for 2023: VND 1,000 per

share

63,500,000,000

Advance dividends for 2024: VND 1,500 per

share

95,250,000,000

Dividends declared after the date of reporting
period and not yet recognised as liability as at

31 December 2024

Shares

Ending balance

BO9-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Previous year

95,250,000,000

63,500,000,000

Beginning balance

Quantity
(shares) Amount (VND)
Authorised shares 63,500,000 635,000,000,000
issued shares 63,500,000 635,000,000,000
Issued shares issued
and fully paid 63,500,000 635,000,000,000
Ordinary shares 63,500,000 635,000,000,000
Preferred shares - -
Shares in
circulation 63,500,000 635,000,000,000
Ordinary shares 63,500,000 635,000,000,000

Preference shares

Quantity
(shares)

63,500,000
63,500,000

63,500,000
63,500,000

63,500,000
63,500,000

Amount (VND)
635,000,000,000
635,000,000,000

635,000,000,000
635,000,000,000

635,000,000,000
635,000,000,000

Par value of outstanding shares: VND 10,000 per share (as at 31 December 2023: VND
10,000 per share). The Company's shares are listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange

with its ticker of “TBC”.
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19.

19.1

REVENUES

BO9-DN/HN

Revenue from sale of electricity, sale of goods and rendering of services

Currency: VND

Current year Previous year
Gross revenue 538,668,435,744 430,943,699,541
In which:
Sale of electricity 512,568,042,821  422,290,665,465
Sale of goods 14,975,680,180

8,653,034,076
Deduction - -
538,668,435,744 430,943,699,541

Rendering of services 11,124,712,743

Net revenue

In which:
Sales to others
Sales to related parties (Note 24)

5,218,777,610 8,434,852,256
533,449,658,134  422,508,847,285

19.2 Finance income

Currency: VND

Current year Previous year
Dividends and profit received 4,517,775,000 4,655,000,000
Interest income 2,811,711,370 6,616,287,506
Gain on sale of held-for-trading securities 2,984,853,500 -
Others 1,974,491,854 131,842
TOTAL 12,288,831,724 11,271,419,348

20. COST OF ELECTRICITY SOLD, GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Currency: VND
Current year Previous year

Cost of electricity sold 191,151,207,487 168,902,875,706

Cost of goods sold 11,324,244 ,043 -
Cost of services rendered 8,103,946,758 4,805,500,671

TOTAL 210,579,398,288  173,708,376,377
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21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Labour cost

Depreciation, amortisation and goodwill
Expenses for external services
Professional service fees (*)

Others

Current year

19,157,073,150
19,156,719,322
4,916,331,610
524,000,000
20,621,786,130

BO9-DN/HN

Currency: VND
Previous year

17,840,741,299
19,439,520,530
4,314,746,267
550,000,000
18,161,100,340

TOTAL

64,375,910,212

60,306,108,436

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

23. CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)
The tax returns filed by the Company and its subsidiary are subject to examination by the tax
authorities. As the application of tax laws and regulations is susceptible to varying
interpretations, the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could change
at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

23.1 CIT expense

Currency: VND

(*) Professional service fees with the global network of EY firms incurred in current year and
prior year, including audit fees separate and consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary. Except for the audit services, the Company and its subsidiary
did not incur any other services with members of the EY global network.

Current year Previous year
Current tax expense 41,247 930,517 29,416,566,788
Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior years 15,348,261 6,736,000
Deferred tax expense/(income) 89,600,145  (1,063,763,421)
TOTAL 41,352,878,923 28,359,539,367

Reconciliation between CIT expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by CIT rate is

presented below:

Currency: VND

Current year Previous year

Accounting profit before tax 269,973,885,189 196,973,643,466

At CIT rate applicable to companies in the

22, PRODUCTION AND OPERATING COSTS
Currency: VND
Current year  Previous year (*)
Raw materials 14,171,940,655 9,212,119,057
Labour costs 52,861,250,936 51,056,467,495
Depreciation and amortisation and goodwill 83,445,372,469 87,307,270,163
Expenses for external services 10,402,054,046 8,566,232,195
Other expenses 112,561,491 ,6ZZ 79,371,610,482
TOTAL 273,442,109,733  235,513,699,392
(*) The previous year amount has been reclassified to ensure consistency in classification of

these items between two years.
23. CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The statutory corporate income tax (“CIT”) applicable to the Company is 20% of taxable
income.

The Company's subsidiary is obligated to pay CIT at the rate applicable to each hydropower
plant project, specifically as follows:

Muong Hum Hydropower Plant Project

The CIT rate applicable to this plant is 10% of taxable income until the end of 2025. The
Muong Hum Hydropower Plant Project was exempt from CIT for 4 years (from 2014 to 2017)
and subject to a 50% reduction in CIT for 9 years (from 2018 to 2026). Accordingly, the CIT
rate applicable for Muong Hum Hydropower Plant Project this year is 5%.

Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant Project

The CIT rate applicable to this plant is 10% of taxable income until 2033. The Ban Xeo
Hydropower Plant Project is exempt from CIT for 4 years (from 2020 to 2023) and subject to
a 50% reduction in CIT for 9 years (from 2024 to 2032). Accordingly, the CIT rate applicable
for the Ban Xeo Hydropower Plant Project this year is 5%.
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Company and its subsidiary 43,084,920,309 30,201,855,495
Adjustments fo increase:
Amotisation of goodwill 3,277,302,612 3,277,302,612
Other non-deductible expenses 969,503,543 713,176,965
Other adjustment due to consolidation 364,287,563 250,496,109
Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior
years 15,348,261 6,736,000

Adjustments to decrease:
Dividends, profit receivables
Utilisation of tax loss carried forward

Tax exempted

CIT expenses

23.2 Current tax

(903,555,000)

(5,454,928,365)

(931,000,000)
(432,729,061)
(4,726,298,753)

41,352,878,923

28,359,539,367

The current CIT payable is based on taxable income for the current year. The taxable income
of the Company and its subsidiary for the year differs from the accounting profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not
taxable or deductible. The Company and its subsidiary’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.
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23.

23.3

24.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)
Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised by the
Company and its subsidiary, and the movements thereon, during the current and previous
years:

Currency: VND

Consolidated balance sheet Consolidated income statement

Ending Beginning
balance balance

Current year Previous year

Deferred tax assets

Unrealized profit from

intercompany transactions 974,163,276 1,063,763,421

974,163,276 1,063,763,421

(89,600,145) 1,063,763 421

Net deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax
(charge)/credit to
consolidated income
statement

(89,600,145) 1,063,763,421

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

List of related parties that have a controlling relationship and have significant transactions with
the Company and its subsidiary during the year and as at 31 December 2024 is as follows:

No Related parties Relationship

1 Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Corporation Ultimate parent

2  R.E.E Energy Company Limited Parent company

3 Power Generation Joint Stock Corporation 3 Major shareholder

4  Thac Ba 2 Investment Hydropower Joint Stock Company  Associate

5 Indochina Electrical Development Joint Stock Company Affiliate

6  Electric Power Trading Company - Vietham Electricity Parent company of the
major shareholder

7 Northern Power Corporation Contact Center - Vietnam Same parent company

Electricity with the major shareholder

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervision, and Board of Management are
presented in the General Information.
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24.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Significant transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

BO9-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Related parties Relationship Transactions Current year Previous year
Electric Power Parent company Sale of electricity 319,144,354,608 244,897,394,884
Trading Company  of the major

- Vietham shareholder

Electricity

Northern Power Same parent Sale of electricity 193,423,688,213 177,393,270,581
Corporation company with the

Contact Center -
Vietnam Electricity

major
shareholder

R.E.E Energy Parent company  Dividend paid 139,529,481,400 98,611,793,610
Company Limited Dividend declared 136,055,489,852 136,976,961,610
Power Generation Major Dividend paid 57,150,000,000 28,575,000,000
Joint Stock shareholder Dividend declared 47,625,000,000 47,625,000,000
Corporation 3
Thac Ba 2 Associate Revenue from sale 20,287,254,619 218,181,820
Investment of goods and
Hydropower Joint rendering of services
Stock Company Capital contribution 19,208,490,000 -
Lending 10,000,000,000 -
Revenue from 927,511,207 -
guarantee services
Lending interests 62,224,658 -
Indochina Affiliate Lending recovery 5,000,000,000 12,000,000,000
E'edjlca' ¢ Joint Loan interest 14,795,032 942,333,736
evelopment Join
Stock Company Reven_ue from ) 261,027,360 330,303,031
rendering of services
Revenue from 333,333,334 -

supporting production
organization activities

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made based on contractual agreements.

Except for loan receivable as presented in Note 8, outstanding balances at 31 December 2024
are unsecured, interest free and will be settled in cash. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company and its subsidiary has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating
to amounts owed by related parties (31 December 2023: nil). This assessment is undertaken
each financial year through the examination of the financial position of the related party and
the market in which the related party operates.

Transactions with related parties are approved by the authorized levels of the Company and its

subsidiary in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 and the
Company and its subsidiary’s Charter.
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24,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

BO9-DN/HN

Amounts due to and due from related parties at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

Related parties

Relationship Transactions

Short-term trade receivables (Note 6.1)

Electric Power
Trading Company
- Vietnam
Electricity

Northern Power
Corporation
Contact Center —

Vietnam Electricity

Thac Ba 2
Investment
Hydropower Joint
Stock Company

TOTAL

Parent
company of
the major
shareholder

Same
parent
company as
the major
shareholder

Associate

Receivables from
sale of electricity

Receivables from
sale of electricity

Receivable from
sale of goods and
rendering of
services

Other short-term trade receivables (Code 136)

Electric Power
Trading Company
- Vietnam
Electricity

Thac Ba 2
Investment
Hydropower Joint
Stock Company
indochina
Electrical
Development
Joint Stock
Company

TOTAL

Parent
company of
the major
shareholder

Associate

Affiliate

Receivables from
resource licensing
fees not yet
invoiced

Receivables from
guarantee fees

Receivables from
loan interest
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Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

66,080,163,702

16,840,441,325

139,957,894,282

16,112,145,456

15,479,964,779 -
98,400,569,806 156,070,039,738
415,860,769 -
380,997,639 -

- 22,848,804

796,858,408 22,848,804

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

24.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

BO9-DN/HN

Amounts due to and due from related parties at the balance sheet dates were as follows

(continued):

Related parties Relationship Transactions

Short-term loan receivables (Code 135)

Indochina Affiliate Loan
Electrical receivables
Development

Joint Stock

Company

TOTAL

Long-term loan receivable (Note 8) (*)

Thac Ba 2 Associate Loan receivables
Investment

Hydropower Joint

Stock Company

TOTAL

Short-term advance to suppliers (Code
312)

Thac Ba 2 Associate Supply and
Investment installation of
Hydropower Joint equipment
Stock Company

TOTAL

Other short-term trade payables (Note 15)

R.E.E Energy Parent Dividend
Company Limited company payable

Power Generation Major Dividend
Joint Stock shareholder payabie
Corporation 3

TOTAL

(*) Details of loan receivables from related party are presented in Note 8.
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Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

- 5,000,000,000
- 5,000,000,000
10,000,000,000 -
10,000,000,000 -
- 3,5696,854,522
- 3,596,854,522

34,890,140,900

9,525,000,000

38,365,168,000

19,050,000,000

44,415,140,900

57,415,168,000

VRN
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24.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Transactions with other related parties

Remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and Management:

Individual

Board of Directors

Mr Nguyen Quang Quyen

Mr Ho Van Trung

Mr Le Tuan Hai
Mr Nguyen Van Da
Mr Tran Ky Hai

Management
Mr Nguyen Van Quyen

Mr Nguyen Manh Cuong
Mr Bui Hoang
Mr Nguyen Thanh Hai

TOTAL

Position

Chairman

Member up to 20
September 2024
Member

Member

Member from to 20
September 2024

General Director cum
member of Board of
Director

Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director

Remuneration of Board of Supervision:

Remuneration
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Current year

72,000,000
54,000,000

72,000,000

72,000,000
18,000,000

1,152,000,000

BO9-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Previous year

72,000,000
72,000,000

72,000,000
72,000,000

1,080,000,000

805,000,000 741,000,000
749,000,000 690,000,000

- 38,000,000
2,994,000,000 2,837,000,000

Currency: VND

Current year  Previous year

192,000,000

192,000,000

Thac Ba Hydropower Joint Stock Company

BO9-DN/HN
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25.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per
share computations:

Currency: VND

Previous year

Current year (restated)

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders

178,027,544,145 125,706,026,114
Distribution to bonus and welfare fund -

(3,754,705,344)

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary

shareholders 178,027,544,145 121,951 ,320,770

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

basic earnings per share 63,500,000 63,500,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for basic earnings per share 63,500,000 63,500,000
Basic earnings per share 2,804 1,920
Diluted earnings per share 2,804 1,920

Net profit used to compute earnings per share for the year 2023 was adjusted for the allocation
to bonus and welfare fund from 2023 profit based on Resolution No. 506/NQ-TDTB-DHDCH
dated 27 March 2024 of the Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2024 and Resolution No.
119/NQ-MHP-DHDCD dated 26 March 2024 of Annual General Meeting in 2024 of Muong
Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company, its subsidiary.

Net profit used to compute earnings per share for the year 2024 was not adjusted for the
allocation to bonus and welfare fund from 2024 profit as the resolution of the shareholders
meeting on such distribution of profit for the current year is not yet available.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares

between the reporting date and the date of completion of these consolidated financial
statements.
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26.

COMMITMENTS
Land lease commitments

The Company signed tand lease contracts No. 31/2010/HDTD dated 3 August 2010 for the
period from 24 October 2005 to 24 October 2055, and contract No. 39/2012/HDTD dated 30
December 2012 for the period from 23 August 2011 to 23 August 2061 with the Department
of Natural Resources and Environment of Yen Bai Province.

According to Notice No. 2691/TB-CTYBA dated 27 July 2020 from the Tax Department of Yen
Bai Province regarding the adjustment of land lease price for the leased plots under contract
No. 31/2010/HDTD, applicable for the period from 24 October 2020 to 23 October 2025, the
Company's commitment for the land lease payments due by 23 October 2025 is VND
25,434,748.

According to Notice No. 2708/TB-CTYBA dated 30 July 2020 from the Tax Department of Yen
Bai Province regarding the adjustment of land lease price for the leased plots under contract
No. 39/2012/HDTD, applicable for the period from 23 August 2021 to 23 August 2026, the
Company's commitment for the land lease payments due by 23 August 2026 is VND
268,393,505.

The Company is obligated to pay land lease after this period based on the lease price that will
be notified by the competent State regulatory authorities.

Muong Hum Hydropower Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of the Company, signed land
lease contracts attached to infrastructure on the land, including contract No. 79/HDTD dated
2 December 2019, contract No. 69/HDTD dated 31 October 2019, and contract No. 16/HDTP
dated 15 June 2022 for the period from 27 November 2019 to 2 January 2057 with the
Department of Natural Resources and Environment of Lao Cai Province. According to the
land lease price exemption decision No. 2683/QD-CT dated 24 June 2022 of the General
Department of Taxation of Lao Cai Province, the company is exempt from land rental fee until
the end of the lease term on 2 January 2057.

Major capital expenditure commitments

As of 31 December 2024, the Company and its subsidiary has commitments amounting to
USD 4,211,898 (31 December 2023: USD 8,081,824) ‘and VND 10,396,466,093 (31
December 2023: VND 29,581,509,678) related to the purchase of machinery, equipment, and
materials, and VND 41,473,574,856 (31 December 2023: VND 8,464,320,938) related to the
value of transportation, installation supervision, testing, guidance, and training services for
the operation of machinery and equipment serving the Company and its subsidiary's activities.

Guarantee commitment

The Company signed Guarantee contract No. 1645/2022/HDCBL/TBC-TBC2 with Thac Ba 2
Hydropower Investment Joint Stock Company, the Company’s associate, whereby the
Company provides payment  guarantees under Credit Contract No.
SHBVN/CMC/122022/HDTD/THACBA2 between Thac Ba 2 Hydropower Investment Joint
Stock Company and Shinhan Bank (Vietnam) Ltd.
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27.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There is no other matter or circumstance that has arisen since the consolidated balance date
that requires adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary.

Yen Bai, Vietnam
11 March 2025

¥\
\\""J-\« .-—.--v.,:. f
N1V igyen Van Quyen

Nguyen Trung Hieu Le Hong Minh ' .
Preparer Chief Accountant Director
48




